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KEY AUTHORITY’S INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background information

Kenya Rural Roads Authority (KeRRA) is a State Corporation established under the Kenya Roads
Act 2007.The Authority is headed by a Board of Directors led by a Chairman with the Director
General being the Chief Executive of the Authority.

At the cabinet level the Authority is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for the Ministry of Roads
and Transport who is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the Authority.

The Authority begun its operations in September 2008 and is represented in the 47 counties through
regional offices.

(b) Principal activities

The Kenya Roads Act 2007 provides for the mandate of the Authority to manage, develop, rehabilitate
and maintain the rural road network within the Republic of Kenya. However, the Constitution of
Kenya 2010 assigns the responsibility of managing National Trunk Roads to National Government
and County Roads to County Governments under the Fourth Schedule Part 18(b). In line with this
provision, the road network in Kenya was reclassified vide Kenya Gazette Notice of 22" January
2016 by the State Department of Infrastructure. National trunk roads in Class C totaling 19,504 Km
were vested to the Authority by the Cabinet Secretary. A further reclassification by the Cabinet
Secretary on 8th May 2020 revised the Authority’s network to18,662Km of national trunk road
network in Class C.

(¢)Key Management

The Authority’s day to day management is under the following key organs;

1. Board of Directors
2. Senior Management led by the Director General

(d) Fiduciary Management
The key Management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30 June 2023 and
who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. | Designation Name

1. | Director General Eng. Philemon Kiprop Kandie

2. | Director (Development) Eng.Jackson K. Magondu.

3. | Director (Road Asset Management) Eng Peter Patu Gichohi

4. | Director (Planning , Design and Environment Eng.Enock Ariga Kombo

5. | Director (Research, Strategy & Compliance) Eng.Julius K. Gakubia

6. | Director (Corporate Services) CPA.Dan Manyasi

7. | Deputy Director (Audit Services) CPA. Judith Chepkemoi Chumo.

8. | Deputy Director (Corporation Secretary/ Legal Affairs) Mr.Justin Rapando

9. | Deputy Director(Supply Chain Management) MCIPS. Ms.Catherine Kangangi

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements
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1. Public Investments Committee.

2. Transport Committee of Parliament.
3. Ministry of Roads and Transport.

4. Kenya Roads Board.

5. Audit and Finance Board Committees.

(f) Authority Headquarters
Barabara Plaza Block B, Airport South road, Opp KCAA building.

(g) Authority Contacts
P.O Box 48151 — 00100,
Nairobi GPO
Tel. 0202710464
Email: kerra@kerra.go.ke
Website: www.Kerra.go.ke

(h) Principal Bankers

1. KCB Bank Limited,
Moi Avenue Branch,
P.O. Box 48400-00100,
Nairobi GPO

2. NCBA Bank Limited,
Upper Hill Branch,
P.O. Box 44599-00100 ,
Nairobi GPO

3. Equity Bank Limited,
Equity Centre,
Hospital Road, Upper Hill.
P.O. Box 75104-00200,
Nairobi

4. Cooperative Bank Limited
Co-operative House,
Haile Selassie Avenue,
P.O. Box 48231 - 00100,
Nairobi GPO

(i) Independent Auditors

Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 49384-00100

Nairobi, GPO

(j) Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General

State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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The Board members are drawn from representatives from public and private sector as set out in

section 8 of the Kenya Roads Act 2007.The members who held the office during the year under

review were as follows:

Prof.(Eng) Oyuko Mbeche EBS
Chairperson of Board

Prof (Eng) Oyuko. O. Mbeche was born in 1946. Prof.(Eng.) Mbeche is a
holder of B.Eng. From Stevens Institute of Technology(USA), MSc from
Polytechnic Institute of Brooklyn(USA)and PhD from the University of
Nairobi. He is a Civil Engineer specializing in the field of Transportation
Planning and Engineering.

Prof. (Eng) Mbeche 1s a Nobel Peace Prize recipient bestowed on him by the
International Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) in December, 2007, Member
American Society of Civil Engineers, Member American Society of
Engineering Education, Member Kenya National Academy of Sciences and
Member Engineering Board of Kenya . He is a Professor of Civil Engineering
at the University of Nairobi and has supervised various undergraduate and
postgraduate projects and has published widely

He is the Chairperson of the Board. He has written many research papers on
matters touching on land use, planning, transport economics and urban
planning. In his work experience, he has worked as a project coordinator, team
leader, and project civil/structural engineer in wvarious government
organizations and trained in corporate governance

Hon. Amb. Ukur Yatani. EGH
Cabinet Secretary National Treasury
Upto 27" October 2022

Hon. Amb. Ukur Yatani Kanacho was born in 1967 and holds Bachelor of
Arts in Economics, Egerton University, Kenya, 1991 and Master of Arts in
Public Administration and Public Policy, University of York, United
Kingdom, 2005;

He has over 27-year experience in public administration, politics, diplomacy
and governance in public sector since 1992, Before his appointment as
Cabinet Secretary for the National Treasury & Planning he served as the
Cabinet Secretary for Labour and Social Protection since January 2018.

Between the years 2006-2007 while Member of Parliament for North Horr
constituency, served as an Assistant minister for science and technology. At
the height of his career (March 2013-August 2017), he served as a pioneer
Governor of Marsabit County, the largest County in the Republic of Kenya,
Between June 2009 and October 2012, he served as Kenya’s Ambassador to
Austria with Accreditation to Hungary and Slovakia and Permanent
Representative to the United Nations in Vienna. In this position, he
aggressively pursued and advanced Kenya’s foreign interests.

He held senior leadership positions at various diplomatic and international
agencies such as Internationmal Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA), United
Nations Organization on Drugs and Crimes (UNODC), United Nations
Industrial Development Organization (UNIDQ), Vice Chairperson of United
Nations Convention Against Transnational Organized Crime (UNTOC), Vice
President of Convention on Crime Prevention and Criminal Justice (CCPJ),
and chair of African Group of Ambassadors among others. Between 1992—
2015, he served in different positions in Kenya’s Public Administration
including a District Commissioner, where sharpened his management and
administrative skills.

viii
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Prof. Njuguna Ndung’u, CBS
Cabinet Secretary National Treasury
From 27" October 2022

Prof. Njuguna Ndung'u was born 1960. and a holder Bachelor of Arts in
Economics degree , and Master of Arts in Economics both from the
University of Nairobi and PhD in Economics from the University of
Gothenburg , Sweden.

Prof Njuguna is an Associate Professor of Economics at the University of
Nairobi, a former Governor of the Central Bank of Kenya. He has been a
member of Global Advisory Council (GAC) of the World Economic Forum
and a Visiting Fellow of Practice at the Blavatnik School of Government,
Oxford University. Director of Training at AERC, Program specialist
at IDRC and Team Leader in Macro-modelling at the Kenya Institute for
Public Policy Research and Analysis. He is a Member of Brookings Africa
Growth Initiative, Member of the Advisory Committee of the Alliance for
Financial Inclusion, that coordinates financial inclusion policies in Africa,
Asia and Latin America, and Senior Advisor for the UNCDF-based Better
Than Cash Alliance,

Prior to the current appointment, Prof. Ndung’u was serving as the Executive
Director of the African Economic Research Consortium (AERC), a Pan
African premier capacity building network of researchers, trainers, students,
universities, policy makers and international resource persons.

Zahra Mohamed Haji
Alternate to Cabinet Secretary
National Treasury
Upto 5th June 2023

Ms. Zahra Mohamed Haji was born in 1981 and i1s a holder of B.Sc.
Journalism from United States International University, Africa and a M.A.
Journalism (International) from London University of Westminster.

She is a dynamic and highly motivated communications coordinator with 12
years of experience engaging members of diverse communities, government
agencies and private organizations in strategic marketing ventures to develop
cross-functional relationships that contribute to business growth and
awareness raising. She has proven ability to promote mandates and services
to consumers within the corporate and non-profit sectors through market trend
analysis and detailed research and is trained in corporate governance

She was an Executive Assistant to the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Labour
and Social Protection and the Executive Assistant to the Cabinet Secretary,
Ministry of National Treasury and Planning. She has held senior leadership
positions such as Senior Manager, Advocacy and Communication at
Commission on Administrative Justice (Office of the Ombudsman) and also
was a Managing Director at Radio Salaam Limited, Mombasa, Kenya.

a A

Samson Palia Wangusi, OGW,
Alternate to Cabinet Secretary
National Treasury
From 5th June 2023

Mr Samson Palia Wangusi was born in 1966 .He holds a Masters of Arts in
Public Administration and a Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration
from Moi University and the University of Nairobi respectively.

Mr. Wangusi is a seasoned administrator with vast experience in Public Sector
Management, spanning over 30 years and currently the Principal
Administrative Secretary (PAS) at The National Treasury. Prior to his current
appointment, Mr. Wangusi was the Director of Administration at the State
Department for Immigration. He has served in a similar capacity at the State
Departments for: Social Protection, Industrialisation, Trade and, Public
Service, Youth & Gender. He 1s also trained in corporate governance.

Mr. Wangusi has also served on various Boards as an Alternate Director to
the Principal Secretary. These include: Bukuru Agricultural College Board,
Special Programme on the National Cereals and Produce Board, Micro
Small Enterprises Authority and, Kenya Shipyard Limited.
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Prof.Arch.Paul Maringa Mwangi
CBS
Principal Secretary -State Department
of Roads -Minisiry of Roads and

Transport.
Up to 2™ December 2022

Prof Arch.Paul Mwangi Maringa, bom in 1959, and holds Bachelor of
Architecture Degree University of Nairobi 1979-1986,Masters of Arts in
Planning-Urban &Regional planning University of Nairobi 1989-1990; and
Doctor of Philosophy— Environmental Planning, Jomo Kenyatta University
of Agriculture and Technology 1999-2005,

He was the Principal Secretary State Department of infrastructure -Ministry
of Transport, Infrastructure, Housing & Urban Development and Public
Works and previous Principal Secretary, State Department of Public Works
having been appointed in December 2015.

Prof Arch.Maringa is a Founder Associate Professor of Architecture and
Planning of the FAED, Senior Expert, Planning & Project Management and
Technical Expert & Master Trainer in Building Construction & Infrastructural
Planning & Development.

Eng. Joseph Mbugua
Principal Secretary -State Department
of Roads -Ministry of Roads and
Transport.

From 2 December 2022

Eng. Joseph Mbugua was born in 1962 and is the immediate former Regional
Director Kenya Rural Roads Authortiy.Eng, Mbugua is a registered
professional Engineer with Engineers Board of Kenya (EBK) and a Corporate
Member of the Institution of Engineers of Kenya (MIEK). He holds a BSC in
Civil Engineering from University of Nairobi. He is a Strategic Manager who
has successfully risen in ranks to be a highly capable change-agent
consistently refining and revitalizing strategies, initiating changes and
facilitating solutions driven by team collaboration within the Public Sector.

He is extensively trained in Strategic Leadership Development, Senior
Management, Highway Development Management, Contract Management,
Labour Based Road Construction and Maintenance, Quality Management
Systems and Master Certificate in Project Management. He has valuable
experience in policy formulation, planning, design, construction and
management of projects and programs gained from his working experience in
Public Service for over 30 years and trained in corporate governance

Eng Mbugua is a Non-Executive Member of the Board of Management for
Thogoto Teachers College, Moi Girls Kamangu Secondary School and
Kikuyu Township Primary School

Eng. Stephen Kogi
Alternate to Principal Secretary- State
Department of Roads - Ministry of
Roads and Transport,

Eng. Stephen K Kogi was born in 1964 and is the alternate to the the Principal
Secretary, State Department of Infrastructure department in the Ministry of
Roads and Transport from June 2020, He is currently the Chief Engineer in
charge of infrastructure quality standards and research in the Ministry

He has extensive experience in professional and public administration,
including strategic leadership and corporate governance gained from his
training and responsibilities in the different programmes and mandates in
government and as a graduate of Civil Engineering from the University of
Nairobi and a Master’s degree of Business Administration from Jomo
Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology.

He has previously coordinated the improvement of roads under various
development partners and the development of policies including the design
guidelines in support of the Government agenda for the improvement of over
10,000Km road network under the Low Volume Sealed Roads Programme

He has been involved in various local and international forums and is the
current President of the African Road and Transport Research Forum with a
membership of the Sub Saharan African countries
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Mr.Julius Korir EBS
Principal Secretary, Ministry of
Devolution,

Upto 2" December 2022

Mr. Julius Korir, CBS, was the Principal Secretary, Ministry of Devolution
Prior to this appoiniment, he was the Principal Secretary in the State
Department for Youth Affairs, Ministry of Information, Communication and
Technology, Innovation and Youth Affairs.

Mr. Korir has also previously served as the Principal secretary in the State
Department for Infrastructure, Ministry of Transport, Infrastructure, Housing,
Urban Development and Public Works, and in the Ministry of Health.

He was first appointed as a Principal Secretary on 18th December, 2015 to
the State Department for Investment and Industry, Ministry of Industry, Trade
and Cooperatives,

Mr. Korir has been instrumental in promoting improved livelihoods for the
Youth by ensuring they have access to decent jobs, entrepreneurship and skills
development and mentorship in addition to encouraging the youth to exploit
their talents for economic gain,

His experience extends to managing Public/Private Partnership (PPP)
initiatives, bringing together Public and Private Sector Stakeholders. His
wealth of experience has seen him spearheading the Contractor Facilitated
Road Development Mechanism. This entails Design-Finance-Build and
Transfer PPP Framework of the Roads Annuity Programme.

He is keen on enterprise development and has vast experience in the fields of
country promotion, particularly Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), exports and
tourism with a view to enhancing economic growth in Kenya.

Mr. Korir has been involved in managing a large portfolio of Government and
Development Partner Funded Projects that are spread throughout the Kenya.

Mr. Korir holds an MBA in International Business and a BSc. in Agricultural
Economics

Ms.Teresia Mbaika
Principal Secretary, Ministry of
Devolution.

From 2™ December 2022

Ms Teresia Mbaika Malokwe Was born in 1986. Ms Teresia holds a Master
of Science degree in Health Economics, obtained from the University of
Nairobi and a Bachelor of Science degree in Environmental Health from
Kenyatta University

In June 2018, Teresia was appointed to the board of directors at the National
Environment Management Authority of Kenya. Ms Teresia was a member of
the eleven-person board of directors at the Kenya Nuclear Electricity Board.
While there, she chairs the Finance and General Purpose committee.

In January 2014, she served as a board member at Beams Construction &
Supplies Limited, a Nairobi-based construction company. She has also
worked at the Kaiti Constituency NG-CDF since June 2013. Her duties
included overseeing financial management, corporate governance and
compliance at the government agency.

Mr. Kennedy Nyambati
Alternate to Principal Secretary
Ministry of Devolution
Upto 4" June 2023

Mr.Kennedy Nyambati is a Director Capacity Building and Technical
Assistance in the Ministry of Devolution. Mr. Nyambati was born in 1966
and hold a Bachelor of Arts (Sociology) from University of Nairobi and
Master in Public Sector Management from the Africa University,
Zimbabwe.

Director Nyambati is well versed in Public Sector Management, Governance

and Leadership; Public Policy Analysis; Performance Management;
Programme & Project Management; Diplomacy & Negotiations; Strategic
Planning & Management; Human Resource Management; Regional
Cooperation & Integration; Devolution Affairs; Inter-Governmental
Relations; Capacity Building & Technical Assistance and trained in corporate
governance,

Xi




Ms. Margaret Akiring Osilli
Alternate to Principal Secretary
Ministry of Devolution
From 4" June 2023

Ms Margaret Osilli is an Assistant Director Devolution Affairs . She is an
accounting professional with management skills and expertise in financial
management. Ms Osilli was born in 1974,

Ms.Osilli is a Certified Public Accountant and holds a Certificate in Strategic
Leadership Development Programme. She has over 20 years’ experience in
cash management, procurement, internal, controls, budgeting, financial
reporting and analysis. She was the part of the secretariat of The 9th Africities
Summit between 01/2022 - 05/2022 and Kenya Devolution Support Program
between 01/2016 - 01/2021, member of the Inter — Agency Working
Committee on County Own Source Revenue

She possesses exceptional interpersonal and management skills, She has
worked for various institutions including Malaba Town Council, Busia
County Council, Nairobi City Council, Kisumu City Council, and county
government of Kisumu.

Ms.Nelly Mbugua OGW
Institution of Surveyors
Of Kenya
Upto 2™ October, 2022

Ms, Nelly Mbugua was born in 1968 and holds Bachelor of Arts in Land
Economics from the University of Nairobi, Master of Science in Project
Management , a post-graduate diploma with the Institution of Surveyors of
Kenya and currently pursuing her Post Graduate studies. Nelly has worked
for top real estate companies in Kenya among them: Lloyd Masika Ltd and
Kenya Valuers & Estate Agents Ltd where she has held senior management
positions. She has trained in Corporate Governance.

She was the Chairperson of Board Human Resource and Administration
Committee Ms. Nelly has vast experience in the real estate industry
consultancy, with local and international Registration and licensing by the
Valuers Registration Board (VRB) and the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS). Nelly is a full member of the Institution of Surveyors of
Kenya (ISK) and has served the Institution as VEMS Chapter Chairperson
and a member of the governing Council. Nelly is a registered estate agent and
is the immediate past Chairperson of the Estate Agents Registration Board
(EARB). As the Chairperson of EARB, Nelly worked tirelessly to improve
professionalism and raise the profile of estate agency profession in Kenya.
She is a Trustee of the Bible Society of Kenya (BSK), and a past Chairperson
of the Board of BSK.

Ms.Nelly is a seasoned valuer, specializing in business and hospitality
industry and oil and gas exploration valuation, as well sales, letting and
property management. Ms Nelly is a director at Citiscape Valuers & Estate
Agents Limited.

Prof. Lawrence Esho
Kenya Institute of Planners.
Upto 2™ October, 2022

Prof . Lawrence Esho was born in 1970 and is a holder of Bachelor of Arts
(BA) Sociology Kenyatta University(Kenya) 1995, Master of Architecture
(M.Arch) Human Settlement from Catholic University of Leuven(Belgium)
2003, Masters of Arts (MA Planning University Of Nairobi Kenya 1997
,Doctor Of Engineering (Dr-Ing), Architecture/Spatial Planning From
Catholic University of Leuven(Kul)(Belgium) 2008,

He was the Chairperson of the Board Audit Committee.

He is trained in sociology, planning and human settlements. He has worked
as a planner and an academic. He is Chairman, Department of Urban and
Regional Planning at the Technical University of Kenya.
Lawrence has researched various aspects of housing, transport and planning
in the region and continues to collaborate in research with a number of
institutions, including KU Leuven, HIS the Netherlands.

xli
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CPA Caroline Waithira Ndung’u
Council of Governers
From 20" June 2023

CPA Caroline Ndungu holds Bachelor of Arts in Economics degree from
University of Nairobi , Advanced Management Programme, Strathmore
Business School/IESE Business School, Barcelona, ES and a Member
Institute of Certified Public Accountant of Kenya.(ICPAK) .CPA Caroline
was born in 1971.

CPA Caroline is certified in Women Directors Leadership Programme, from
Strathmore Business School/Cranfield University, 2018 ,Certificate of
Strategic Analysis & Choices, Cranfield University, 2007 , Diageo Way of
Brand Building (Trainer & Training), 2005

CPA Caroline has over 25years experience in the Corporate world in various
capacities and is an expert in Strategic Planning ,Performance Management,
Business Development , Training and Development, Financial Management,
Stakeholder Management Project & Program Management .

Some of her selected achievements include the successfully transition of the
Barclays brand to Absa over a period of three years, Define the Jubilee
Insurance brand and create a strong affinity brand in the eyes of consumers.

Eng. Yego Kiprutto Shadrack
Institution of Engineers of Kenya
Upto 2™ October, 2022

Eng. Shadrack Yego was born in 1980 and he is registered with Engineers
Board of Kenya as a professional engineer and a corporate member of the
Institution of Engineers of Kenya (MIEK).

Eng. Shadrack Yego holds Bachelor of Science degree in Civil engineering
from University of Nairobi. He has over fifteen (15) years of experience in
carrying out engineering feasibility studies, infrastructure assessments,
preliminary and detailed studies and designs, confracts administration and
construction supervision of engineering projects in the field of roads, dams,
water and sanitation and buildings.

Eng Shadrack was the Chairperson of Board Finance committee and Board
Technical Committee and has passion in giving back to the community and
a champion of corporate governance and continues to hold leadership mantle
in various private institutions. Eng Shadrack has a good and strong blend of
the Government of Kenya systems, private sector and United Nations working
environment. In addition, Eng Shadrack has experience working in similar
projects in ASAL and hardship areas in Kenya, Tanzania, Burundi and
Somalia.

Eng. Dorcas Mutheu Musingi
Institution of Engineers of Kenya
From 20" June 2023

Eng Dorcas is holder of Bachelors of Technology (BTech) degree and a
Master of Philosophy Degree in Civil Engineering both from Moi University
and is Registered Member of Engineers Board of Kenya (EBK) and Institute
of Engineers of Kenya(IEK) Eng. Dorcas Mutheu Musingi was born in 1978.

Eng. Dorcas has over 20 years experience in various capacities. Currently is
a lecturer at Technical University of Mombasa (TUM) and is involved in
developing curriculum, developing course material, conducting research and
writing papers and Journals. Eng. Dorcas is also well versed in Corporate
governance.

Eng. Dorcas has served as committee member for IEK as Coast Branch Vice
Chairperson, Syllabus Review committee for TUM and organizing Secretary
of coast Kamba Professionals.

xiii




Mr.Alvin Kibet Kirui MBS
Kenya Farmers Association

Mr Alvin Kirui was born in 1993 and holds and Bachelors of Business
Information Technology Degree from Jomo Kenya University of Agriculture
and Technology and has successfully completed the investing in Agribusiness
Value Addition programme from Strathmore University.

Mr. Alvin is a Member of the Micro and Small Enterprise Tribunal
representing SME Sector under the Judiciary, whose mandate is settlement of
commercial disputes. He is a Founding Director of Tekelbei Water
Foundation, a non state actor with a goal of providing water storage facilities
for rural farmers, providing farmers with market information, and climate
adaptive farming strategies. Mr Alvin also leads the East Sotik Co-operative
Society which deals with value addition to dairy farmers

X

Eng. Philemon K.Kandie MBS
Director General/Secretary to the
Board

Eng. Philemon Kandie was born in 1971 and is a registered engineer with
Engineers Board of Kenya and a member of the Institution of Engineers of
Kenya (MIEK).

Eng. Kandie holds BSc. Hons in Civil Engineering from Jomo Kenyatta
University of Agriculture & Technology and Diploma in Transport Planning,
Development & Management from Galilee Management Institute (Israel),
Master of Science in Road Management & Engineering from the University
of Birmingham in United Kingdom, He has been extensively trained in
Management Infrastructure embracing Road Asset Management and has
valuable experience in policy formulation, planning, design, construction and
management of projects and programs gained from his working experience in
Public Service for over 24 years.

He worked in the Ministry of Roads and Kenya National Highways Authority
as Regional Manager in various stations and promoted to Regional Network
Coordinator in headquarters. He is a Registered Professional Engineer with
Engineers Board of Kenya and a Corporate Member of Institution of
Engineers of Kenya.

Eng. Kandie holds leadership portfolios in and out of the Authority and a
member of various committees amongst them, Road Sector Investment Plan,
Review of Road Classification, Performance Based Contracts and Roads 2000
Strategy Implementation.

Xiv
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Eng. Philemon K.Kandie MBS
P.Eng.,BscHons, MIEK, MSc
Director General

Eng. Peter P. Gichohi
P.Eng., MSc BSc., MIEK, A(CIAB)
Director Road Asset Management.

CPA Dan Manyasi
MBA,BCom,CPA(K)
Director -Corporate Services

Eng. Jackson K. Magondu
P.Eng. M(IBL) BSc., MIEK, A(CIArb-UK)
Director Development

Eng. Julius K. Gakubia
P.Eng., BSc., MIEK
Ag Director- Research, Strategy &
Compliance

Eng. Enock A. Kombo
P.Eng., MA(Planning),Bsc, MIEK
Director -Planning , Design & Environment

CPA Judith C. Chumo
Beom,MBA,CPA(K),CISA, CIQA
Deputy Director - Internal Audit
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Mr. Justin M. Rapaﬂdo Ms.Catherine Knngang‘i
LLM,LLB Msc,Dip(KSL), CPS(K),M(CIArb) Msc(Proc.& Logistics), MKISM,MCIPS
Deputy Director - Legal Affairs Ag. Deputy Director — Supply Chain
Management
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Revenues 2022-2023

Total Revenue: 65,470,123( KSh ‘000’)

Donor 454,430 Others 904,183

e

= RMLF = GOK @ Donor = Others

Total RMLF: 26,409,596(Ksh ‘000’)

= 10% Critical Links Roads = 10% Special Allocation = 22% Constituency Roads Fund = RMLF Operations
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

It is my pleasure to present the Kenya Rural Roads Authority Financial
Statements for the year ended 30" June 2023.

The Board during the period in review provided fiduciary oversight on all The
Authority road financing activities and operations. Customer-centricity is
sigiliﬁcant in growing large customer base and improving the needs and
preferences of customers. The Authority adopted client-centered approach
in the organization to dissect the needs and preferences of its customers.
This has enabled the Authority to excellently meet and exceed the demands
and expectations of its customers. The Authority conducts customer satisfaction survey
periodically online and verbally to foster customer satisfaction through dissection of customer
feedbacks and making instant improvement.

The Authority is accelerating immense economic growth through “last mile connectivity’ aimed
at opening up rural Kenya. Among the various projects being undertaken by the Authority for
economic transformation which are a boost to the primary growth sectors of the economy include
upgrading of new roads and bridges, periodic and routine maintenance of roads, road
reconstruction and rehabilitation, road safety and axle load monitoring. The Authority therefore
is a critical cornerstone facilitating the achievement of the Government’s Bottom-Up Economic
Transformation Agenda.

The country has made significant political and economic reforms that have contributed
to sustained economic growth, social development, and political stability gains over the past
decade. Political stability is crucial to foster investor confidence in Kenya’s economy. However,
key development challenges still remain among them poverty, inequality, youth unemployment,
climate change, continued weak private sector investment, and the vulnerability of the economy
to internal and external shocks.

Kenya has a robust PPP Act that helps in execution of mega projects in the country. Additionally,
it has some of the best legal legislation aimed at enhancing businesses in the country. This has
helped the country to rank favourably in the World Bank Ease of Doing Business. There has been
increased government’s efforts to establish vocational training institutions to produce skilled
labour force on a need basis. Further, there has been increased financing of SMEs which are the
driving force for Kenya’s construction industry thereby fostering a successful construction
industry.

Not only was our staff highly engaged in FY 2022/2023, they also delivered excellent customer
service and operational performance for the Authority. The Management Team continued to put
in extra effort to maintain the Authority’s cultivated culture of high performance and high
engagement, as evidenced by our continued strong scores in the FY 2021/2022 Performance
Contract. Qur unique vantage point at the intersection of finance, strategy, and performance,
allowed us to fully support the management team in defining a suite of new measures and
initiatives that reflect the Board’s innovative and forward-looking priorities.

I wish to extend my sincere appreciation to the various Committees of the Board and the Board
of Directors for rising to the occasion, individually and severally for abiding to sound corporate
governance principles and providing policy guidance to Management with strict adherence to
policies and standard operating procedures. I remain grateful to the Authority’s Management and
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staff for their dedication and commitment in quality service delivery as I look forward to FY
2023/2024, that together the staff will deliver even greater performance.

Prof. (Eng.) Oyuko Mbeche, EBS
Chairperson - Board of Directors
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REPORT OF

On behalf of the Kenya Rural Roads Authority, I am pleased to provide th-
financial year 2022/2023 Financial Statements. This culminates to our financia
management for the year aiming at accurately tracking and disclosing our
financial status, and to ensure that the Authority continues to act as a good
steward of public funds. It’s a presentation of the statements in relation to our
mission and the resources entrusted to us.

Despite the inadequate budgetary allocations, the Authority remained

resilient to achievement of its core activities. In particular, it upgraded
292kms against a target of 273kms, routinely maintained 23,646kms against a target of
23,231kms, periodically maintained 128kms against a target of 127kms and
reconstructed/rehabilitated 57kms of roads in the year under review. Further, the Authority
continued to implement all the presidential directives as issued from time to time and particularly
on fast-tracking of implementation of ongoing road development projects and growing of
15,000No. trees at designated forests (Murinduko Hill, Njukine Forest in Kirinyaga County) in
collaboration with Kenya Forest Service and in road camps, The Authority Regional Offices and
along edges of road reserves in conjunction with stakeholders.

The Authority takes cognizance of the legal requirement for women, youth and persons with
disabilities to access 30% of Government Procurement opportunities being implemented within
the context of the AGPO program. The aim of the AGPO program is to facilitate the enterprises
owned by women, youth and persons with disabilities to be able to participate in Government
opportunities. In particular, the Authority empowered this special category by awarding Kshs.
5,624,651,847 (against a target of Kshs. 5,390,685,648) worth of contracts for enterprises owned
by these groups aimed at empowering them by giving them more opportunities to do business
with Government.

Further, the Authority developed an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System to integrate
internal business processes towards enhancing accurate forward planning, data reliability and
regulatory compliance. The following Modules were developed in the year: Finance, Human
Resource, Payroll and Legal. In addition, the following ICT portals were developed: E-
procurement portal, Employee service portal and roadside development approval E-service portal.
The automation of internal audit process is ongoing.

Additionally, the Authority successfully rolled out a mechanism of handling visitors through a
Visitors Management System in the year under review. This has enabled time saving and
productivity improvement, better data collection, visitors privacy, organizational security and
improved professional image.

Moreover, the Authority engaged 273No. industrial youth internships/attachments (against a
target of 240No.) with a main aim of putting into practice the theory and technical skills learnt in
the lecture room and expected to create useful linkages with captains of industry having a general
feel of the industry. The students got an opportunity to gain industrial experience and workplace
skill sets.

Increasingly, if a public institution 1sn’t committed to fair and effective complaints resolution, it
risks destroying clients value and lose customers confidence. The Authority handled amicably all
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127No. complaints received in the year. At the Authority, customer resolution has become a more
crucial measure of corporate worth and an instrument for winning and maintaining customer trust
earning their loyalty.

The Authority faced numerous challenges resulting to low absorption levels. In the year under
review, low absorption levels were as a result of delays in procurement and project
implementation; late exchequer disbursements from the National Treasury; and frequent changes
of workplans by Constituency Roads Committees (CRCs). Some of the challenges were
exogenous to the Authority’s control and particularly the late disbursement of exchequer releases.
For example, the Authority received Kshs 18.3Billion on 29" June, 2023 (tail-end of financial
year) which was almost half of total receipts undermining anticipated 100% absorption levels.

Kenya's economy remains resilient due to its diversification and low dependency on natural
resources for export, and the positive outlook for construction supported by the expectation of the
government aggressively pushing for public-private partnerships (PPPs) to attract private
investment. The revised PPP Act 2021, is expected to accelerate investments through PPP
arrangements.

GDP from Construction in Kenya increased to 146,784 Kshs. Million in the first quarter of 2023
from 145,649 Kshs. Million in the fourth quarter of 2022 (Source: Kenya National Bureau of
Statistics). This also depicts a positive future outlook for the construction industry.

The achievements within the financial year can be attributed to the support, firm guidance and
the positive direction given by the Board of Directors. Moreover, the dedication, innovation and
commitment to duty by the Authority staff made it possible for Management to perform and
achieve to the expectation of the Board and other stakeholders without difficult.

The Authority also counted on the critical and invaluable cooperation and support from our
stakeholders, the Ministry of Roads and Transport and The National Treasury and Planning for
their distinguished role in helping us achieve our mandate through both policy and budgetary
support. In addition, our appreciation goes to development partners (KfW, AfD, BADEA and EU)
and related road agencies for their continued support and partnerships.

—retc

Eng. Philemon K. Kandie, MBS
Director General
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Overview

The Board provides oversight to management who are responsible for the day to day running of
the organization and emphasizes on principles of good Corporate Governance in the discharge of
its mandate. The Board has 4 committees through which it discharges its mandate and is evaluated
annually by SCAC. The positions of Chairman and Director General are held by different persons,
as stipulated in the Mwongozo Code of Corporate Governance for State Corporations.The Board
and management have been trained on the Mwongozo Code of Corporate Governance for State
Corporations.

Organization structure of the Authority

The Kenya Rural Roads Authority is governed by a Board of Directors as per Kenya Roads Act
2007. The day to day management of the Authority is carried out by the Director General who is
also secretary to the board. The Authority carries its mandate through the following Directorates
and Departments.

a) Directorate of Development

b) Directorate of Road Asset Management

c) Directorate of Research, Strategy & Compliance
d) Directorate of Planning, Design and Environment
e) Directorate of Corporate Services

f) Directorate of Audit Services.

g) Corporation Secretary/ Legal Affairs Department
h) Supply Chain Management Department.

Appointments to the Board

Appointments to the Board are carried out pursuant to section 8 of the Kenya Roads Act 2007.
The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the President of the Republic of Kenya. Members of
the Board are appointed by the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Roads and Transport on
recommendation of the various nominating institutions provided for under the Kenya Roads Act
2007.

Board Organization and structure

The composition of the Board is as per the provisions of Section 8 of the Kenya Roads Act 2007.
The Board is composed of representatives of relevant Government Ministries and private sector
as represented by the various nominating bodies and is independent of management. The Board
has set up Four standing committees to discharge its oversight role.

The role of the Board

The role of the Board is to provide strategic direction and oversight to management in the running
of the Authority’s affairs.

Activities of the Board

It is the responsibility of the Chairman and the Secretary to work closely together in planning the
annual program and agendas for meetings. The Board is required to meet at least four times a
year and the meetings are structured to allow open discussion. All substantive agenda items have
comprehensive briefing papers, which are circulated well in advance.
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In addition to regular Board meetings, there are a number of other meetings to deal with specific
matters. When directors are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman or the Director
General prior to or after the meeting.

During the period under consideration, the Board had various meetings to deliberate on issues
affecting the Authority. The Board also made several site visits to launch and inspect various
projects being undertaken by the Authority. An evaluation of the Board was also carried out
during the period.

Board Effectiveness

The Board is sufficiently independent of management and performs its functions in a way to
enhance Board effectiveness. To further enhance effectiveness, the directors have been trained
on various issues on Corporate Governance and Mwogozo code of conduct

The table below indicates Board meeting attendance for the period 1.7.2022 - 30.6.2023

Prof. (Eng.) Oyuko
EBS

2 | Eng. Stephen Kogi, OGW v v v v v v v v v v | J

3 | Ms. Nelly Mbugua, OGW  IERERESERE W

4 | Mr. Kennedy Nyambati x | ¥ | 4 | V| V| V| V[ [ I [TV

5 | Prof. Lawrence Esho T | v [ ¥ | V] =] 5] =]=]=[-=

¢ |mpnmssanmewss | Ll Y SN YT =1=T7T~]=7+*1-:+
B Y y R ¥ J v v x x v v

T Mr. Alvin Kibet Kirui, MBS

8 | Ms. Zahra Haji = | x| x [ = [ V] V][ V][ V][ V] V]V

9 CPA Margaret Osilli - B - N - - B v

*The tenure for Directors Ms. Nelly Mbugua, OGW, Prof. Lawrence Esho and Eng. Shadmck Kiprutto Yego ended on 2" October, 2022.
*Dircctor CPA Margaret Osilli took office in June, 2023 replacing Director Mr Kennedy Nyambati.

Board Committees

In line with the provisions of the Kenya Roads Act 2007, the Board established four Standing
Committees. These are Board Finance Committee, Board Human Resources Committee, Board
Audit, Risk & Governance Committee and Board Technical Committee. The committees are
provided with all necessary resources to enable them to undertake their duties in an effective
manner,

Board Audit, Risk & Governance Committee

The Board Audit Committee was established in accordance with the provisions of Treasury
Circular No 16. of 25. The Board receives reports from the Audit Committee. The Internal
Audit function reports directly to the Board Audit Committee and is independent of
management operations. The Board has a responsibility of ensuring the Authority has adequate
systems and processes of accountability, risk management and internal controls and the Internal
Audit does provide an enterprise assurance of the functional areas in reference to responsibility
attributed to the Board.
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Board Finance Committee

The committee meets on Quarterly basis. The committee assists the Board in its oversight role of
the Authority relating to Authority’s finance matters. This is as per the committees Terms of
Reference.

Board Human Resource Committee

The committee assists the Board in its oversight role of the Authority relating to Authority’s
human resource matters. This is as per the committees Terms of Reference.

Board Technical Committee

The committee assists the Board in its oversight role of the Authority’s function relating to the
technical issues relating to the Authority’s mandate. This is in terms of the design, construction
and maintenance of roads under the Authority's mandate.

Board and Member Performance

The Board undertakes a self-performance evaluation every year. The performance evaluation is
facilitated by the oversight body (State Corporations Advisory Committee). The evaluation helps
in improving the performance of the Board.

Board Remuneration

Members of the Board are remunerated in accordance with the policy of the Government of
Kenya as communicated from time to time.

Conflict of interest

Directors are required to disclose to the Board any real or potential conflict of interest that comes
to the attention of the Directors. This requirement was observed during the reporting period.

Ethics and governance audit

The Board subjects the organization to a Governance audit by a member regulated by the Institute
of Certified Public Secretaries of Kenya and accredited for the purpose.

e

DIRECTO
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The entity’s operational and financial performance

The National Government’s commitment continues to be seen through the improved budgetary
allocation to the road sector. In the period under review, the Authority received a total of 64.34
Billion against a budget allocation 65.19 Billion for the full financial year.

The graph below indicates our funding over the last five financial periods.

Funding History
ksh'000
70,000,000
60,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
30,000,000
20,000,000
10,000,000
2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 20222023
= Donor 896,320 1,018,506 71,533 520,945 154,430
BAMLF 16,926,623 23,781,150 22,115,430 21,725,667 26,409,596
HGOK 37,263,912 65,770,188 40,872,115 36,959,142 37,701,914
o Donor MRMLF HGOK
Funds Absorption.

In this financial year the Authority achieved a funds absorption rate of 63.12% of all the funds
available at its disposal. This is a decline of 3% compared to the previous financial period. This
was due Delays in formation of CRC Committees, Late Exchequer disbursements from National
Treasury, Executive order of transactions of above Ksh 50 Million
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Funds Absorption Rate

76.00%
74.00%
72.00%%
70.00%s
68.00%
66.00%
54.00%
62.00%
B60.00%

58.00%

56.00%
2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

*Funds Absorption is based on cash balances available for the period. It is calculated by adding Opening Cash Balance and total Receipts less
closing cash Balance and compared total funds available.

RMLF Fund Output Performance

In the period under review the Authority maintained 23,554.5 km of Roads. The table below indicates
the performance of the RMLF over time

RMLF Funds
27,000
26,000
B
2 25,000
8
£ 24,000
=
s 23,000
-4
22,000 .
21,000
2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023
Period

Entity’s compliance with statutory requirements

The Authority has complied with all statutory requirements externally imposed throughout the
Period. There are no major noncompliance issues that may expose the authority to potential

contingent liabilities.
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Key projects and investment decisions the entity is planning/implementing

The Authority has an ongoing portfolio of 8,249 Kms of contracts under reconstruction and
Upgrading worth Kshs. 362 Billion with 3501 Kms expected to be completed within the next
three years at total cost of Kshs. 171 Billion. The bulk of the contracted works falls under the
Roads 10,000 low volume sealed roads programme

Major risks facing the entity

The major risks that the Authority is exposed to are reported on the note 28 of this report.

Material arrears in statutory/financial obligations

The Authority is not in arrears in the payment of statutory obligations though it has pending
bills of approximately Ksh 55 billion as at 30" June 2023. These have been included as part of
Payables.

The entity’s financial probity and serious governance issues

There has been no reports of financial improbity by the internal audit, external audit nor Other
Government agencies.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/ SUSTAINABLITY

1. Sustainability strategy and profile
A broad Political, Economic, Social, Technological, Environmental and Legal (PESTEL) scan
was undertaken with a view to describing the circumstances under which the Authority operates

Political Factors

1.Stakeholder Engagement

o Challenges with project planning
and implementation
» Cost inflation due variation

» Adherence to project
implementation Guidelines

e Public participation

e Adherence to Annual Road Works

Program (ARWP)

2.Funding to the Authority
affected by political dynamics

e Low funding level in comparison to
increased demand for better roads
o  Additional funding

e Lobby parliament and cabinet
s Stakeholder engagement

3. Multiplicity of players in

policy
development

e Interference with policy
implementation

e Conflicting directives leading to risk
of non-compliance

e Lobby parliament and cabinet
= Stakeholder engagement

4. Weak institutional leadership

e Interference with institutional
governance

e Partial or total Non-adherence to
policies and guidelines

o Uphold Corporate governance
guidelines

Develop assertive leadership
Capacity building

5. Prolonged political activity

e Interference with project
implementation
e Gaps in leadership and direction

e Adherence to project
implementation

e guidelines

s Engagement with relevant
stakeholders

Economic Factors

1 .Lack of adequate funds

e Maintenance backlog (increased

Increase RMLF allocations

road asset deferioration) * Lobby for enhanced external
e High vehicle operating costs funding
e High road user costs * Explore alternative options of
e Reduced network improvement funding
e High cost of interest payments * Increased collaboration with
- external
e partners
2 Fiscal and Monetary Policies | ¢  High taxation e Monitoring and review of policies
e Inflation and strategies
High cost of fuel and road works e Macroeconomic stability
materials e Adaptation to changes in fiscal
e Limitations to line budgetary policy
items

3.Regional economic disparities

o Discrepancies in economic

empowerment among counties

(Marginalized areas)

o Skewed regional competitive
advantage.

» Increased Equalization fund
» Increased Equitable 10% RMLF
e Standardisation and harmonisation

Social Factors

* Road reserve demarcation
= Public sensitization
= Stakeholder engagement

p Increased accidents
» Loss of livelihoods
p Increased project costs

1.Road Reserve Encroachment
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» Hostility
» Interference with project
implementation

2.Poor adherence to axle load
limits

» Costly maintenance of roads
» Reduced road lifespan

» Public sensitization

» Enforcement of axle load limits
* Periodic road design reviews

» Stakeholder engagement

3.Meeting Societal Expectations

» Formulation and review of ARWP
» Formulation and review of Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) work plan

e Effectively manage expectations
» Public sensitization

= Engagement with stakeholders

* Upholding organizational core
values

Technological Factors

1. Automation and information
security

¢ High investment in ICT systems and
infrastructure

e Effective information security
management

¢ Enhanced efficiency and operational
interconnectivity

* Develop suitable ERPs

* Develop and implement information
security stratepies

* Implement ISMS

2.Emerging technologies in road
construction and ICT

e Incorporate usage of locally available
materials and labour

e High cost of transition

e Need for matching staff knowledge
and exposure with technology

e Adaptation of technology and
road
construction concepts to
emerging
trends including R2000 &
R10,000

s  Monitor obsolescence of
technology
and approaches
Frequent updates

e Plan for future technological
improvements

s Capacity building

Ecological factors/Environmental

1.Adverse weather conditions
(floods, mudslides, prolonged
rainfall and drought)

e Partial or total cut-off of the road
network

e Increased frequency and costs of
road and maintenance and
rehabilitation works

e Delay in execution of projects in
adverse weather and Cost overruns

o Availability of manpower

* Develop and implement

annual disaster mitigation and
management strategy

» Enhance works insurance to cover
adverse weather

2.Availability of natural road
construction material

o Depletion of natural resources

o High construction costs
Damage to economically
productive land

= Research on alternative road
construction material

¢ Embrace viable emerging
technologies

2. Environmental Performance Sustainability

Environmental Performance

The Authority

is committed to continuous improvement of environmental performance by

putting in place strategies and actions to ensure that potential negative impacts of its operations
to the environment are minimized. It is therefore the Authority's commitment to improve human
welfare through the protection of natural capital throughout its operations. An Environmental and
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Social Sustainability Policy is in place with its main aim being to guide the Authority in
conforming to the prevailing Government strategies as highlighted in the National Environment
Policy. In accordance with the Policy, the Performance Contracting guidelines and the
requirements of the Environmental Management and Coordination Act, the Authority
implemented the following activities during the 2022/2023 financial year: -

Measures to mitigate against water, air, noise and other forms of pollution

Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) Studies were finalised and submitted to
NEMA for 39No. Projects. Additionally, the Authority continues to monitor compliance to the
Environmental & Social Management Plans and EIA Licence conditions for the various projects
under implementation, and corrective measures have been employed whenever a non-conformity
is noted. 5No. Environmental & Social Audits (ESA) were undertaken to check environment
compliance level for recently completed projects.

Promoting Environmental Protection and Conservation through Stakeholder Partnerships

The Authority sponsored and participated in the Annual Environmental Conference on 24" — 25
November, 2022 in Nairobi, the World Wetlands Day (WWD) 2023 National Commemoration
on 2™ February 2023 in Narok County, and the World Environment Day (WED) National
Commemoration on 5™ June, 2023 in Nakuru County.

As part of the Authority’s efforts to mainstream Environmental & Social Sustainability,
awareness trainings were conducted for Staff both from the Headquarters and the 47 KeRRA
Regions.

Tree Planting Initiatives

The Authority through a Framework for Collaboration with the Kenya Forest Service (KFS) was
allocated five (5) hectares of degraded forest site in Murinduko Hill under Njukini West Forest
Station in Kirinyaga County for adoption and rehabilitation. A total of 10,000 tree seedlings were
planted and are being nurtured through the framework. Further, 5,000 tree seedlings were planted
across the various KeRRA Regions making a total of 15,000. The average Survival Rate is 80%.

The above initiatives are aimed at enhancing the Authority’s efforts to manage biodiversity,
ensure sustainable waste management and in the long run minimize the institution’s
environmental footprint. Achievement of the Authority’s full potential has nonetheless not been
actualized due to limitations of funds and competing interests. The Authority is however
committed to harmonization of infrastructural development and environmental objectives in the
delivery of core business activities to maximize value.

3. Employee Welfare
The Authority recruitment process is guided by the following statutes

a) The Employment Act 2007.
This ensures that the protection of the fundamental rights of employees, and provide basic
conditions of employment of employees. It defines the contractual obligations of both
parties. It ensures both the rights of employees are protected in terms of Terms and
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Relationships, Protection of Wages, Employment Relationship and termination and
dismissal '

b) The National Cohesion and integration Act 2008
That prohibits Discrimination in employment. It requires all public establishments to seek
to represent the diversity of the people of Kenya in the employment of staff and to have
no more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic community.

c) The Public Service Commission Act 2017 and PSC Regulations 2020
Some of the staff working in The Authority were originally from the Ministry and the
provisions of the act pertaining to Appointments, Promotions, Redesignations, Transfers,

Secondments and Deployments
d) The Authority HR Policies and Procedures Manual
The Authority is an equal opportunity employer and does not in its recruitment and
selection process, discriminate on the basis of gender, race, religion, ethnicity or any other
form of discrimination. The constitutional requirement on mainstreaming of Gender and
Persons with Disabilities as stipulated in Article 232 of the Constitution of Kenya, is
observed alongside any policies issued by the National Cohesion and Integration
Commission (NCIC).
Performance Appraisal

The performance management system of the Authority is designed to measure employee
performance and ultimately the achievement of intended results for the organization. The
Authority has an incentive scheme aimed at rewarding members of staff based on the value they
are adding to the Authority in relation to their performance, approved experience and professional
skills/competence. This framework therefore establishes a basis for rewarding exemplary
performance and administering sanctions for poor performance, motivating employees to have
positive attitude to work and to enhance productivity in the Authority.

Whilst the Authority recruits competent personnel, it endeavors to continuously improve the
Knowledge, Skills and Attitudes of its employees to ensure that their performance meets and/or
exceeds the minimum expectations and benchmarks best practices. It recognizes the need for
training and development of all employees in order to ensure effective delivery of its broad
mandate. Training opportunities are therefore offered to all its employees in order to improve
their work performance and personal development. Funds allowing, all members of staff should
have at least five (5) days training in a year.

The Authority’s has a developed career progression guideline which provides for a well-defined
career structure aimed at attracting, motivating and facilitating retention of qualified and
experienced personnel in the Kenya Rural Roads Authority (KeRRA). It establishes distinct levels
of responsibilities in the grading structure and sets standards for advancement to higher grades
on the basis of professional competence, specialization, knowledge, experience, proven ability,
diligence and drive as reflected in work performance and results.

The Authority has developed an Occupational Safety and Health Policy which guides its
operations to ensure the safety of both Employees in the workplace and other stakeholders. It is
further bound by the provisions of the occupational safety and health Act 2007.

4. Market place practices

Responsible Competition and Fair Practices
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The Authority utilizes tender documents from PPRA. The User Department is tasked, in liaison
with Supply Chain Department, to crafting the documents to reach a wide variety of suppliers,
contractors and stakeholders. They are made easy to read and standardized across all Regional
offices and Directorates and Departments. The documents have specific Declaration Forms under
Standard Forms to be filled by bidders during bidding. The Authority has also ensured bidders
have access to these opportunities via our website www.kerra.go ke as well as www.tenders.go.ke
Bidders are also encouraged to engage the Authority via our customer service desk, contact
numbers and emails.
The Authority through the Constituency Roads Committees (CRC) in the various regional offices
engages the various stakeholders in prioritization of maintenance roads. The CRCs were created
under the Finance Act 2009 to enhance openness and equity in public representation and decision-
making process in procurement. The result is decentralisation in both economic and political
relationships.
Our procurement plans consolidated by the Supply Chain Department uses the most preferred
procurement method based on works, services and goods being procured. Open National tenders
is used to encourage competition among suppliers. Special groups have also been allocated
tenders.
The evaluation committee appointments are done within PPADA provisions to ensure
transparency in all procurement process. Further evaluation committees are required to sign
Confidentiality Declaration Form on conflict of interest.
Supplier Relationships in Supply Chain
The Authority trains the suppliers on what is expected of them in terms of the bidding process,
ethical behavior and confidentially of information. The bidders are debriefed on how they
performed during the tendering process and notification to all participating bidders indicating the
successful bidders. These are aimed at respecting bidders’ rights and inspire confidence in our
procurement process. From time-to-time, the Authority has invited YAGPO groups to supplier
conferences to train and inform of our procurement processes and modes include use of e-
procurement. The trainings are unbundled to cluster regions hence reach by all prospective
bidders.
Infusion of Technology in Procurement Process
The employment of ERP in our Authority has brought about simplicity and fast delivery of our
core mandate. This is cemented by the Executive Orders requiring the Authority adhere to
constitutional tenet of good governance, integrity, accountability and transparency. The Supply
Chain Department in liaison with ICT Department piloted the automation of supplier
prequalification process. The processes have been enhanced and automated the prequalification
of contractors.
Further, KeRRA website has been revamped with various menus to include link to our e-services.
This has maximized our visibility and minimized walk-ins.
Responsible Stewardship: Service Charter
The Authority takes pride in its “RESOLVED CITIZENS’ SERVICE DELIVERY CHARTER”.
The Charter available on our website in both Swahili and English and also prominently displayed
in all Regions and at the Head Office. The Public Relations Department has endeavored to reach
the Persons with Disability by generating Braille Charters. Members of staff and stakeholders are
from time to time taken through the contents of the Charter.

5. Community Engagements
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) gives an opportunity to contribute in giving back to the

society. Therefore, the Authority allocated Kshs5 million towards Corporate Social
Responsibility Programmes for FY 2022/2023. In reporting period, the Authority received a high
number of requests for support from various quarters, which led to the full utilization of the Kshs5
million provision.
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In the reporting period, the programme has significantly touched the lives of vulnerable people
in the society, promoting rights to education and embracing environmental responsibility through
tree planting.

It 1s remarkable that the Authority initiated in new projects in the reporting period such as the
support towards National Council for Persons with Disabilities, Tree planting in Maragoli hills
and donation of furniture to Endarasha Primary School.

Some of the Authority most notable CSR activities carried out in the FY 2022/2023 include;
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Kenya Rural Roads Authority
Innual Report aind Finaneial Statements

Lo 5 a gl -
For the year ended 30" June 202

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS :

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
30th June 2023, in accordance with the provisions of section of the 38 of Kenya Roads Act 2007
which disclose the state of affairs of the Authority.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Authority is the management, development, rehabilitation and

maintenance of the Rural Road Network in Kenya classified as C and others.

Results

The results for the Authority for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set out on page 1.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page ix-xv.
Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Authority's books of account in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya, Kenya Roads Act 2007
and the Public Audit Act, 2015

By order of the Board

Name : Eng. Philemon Kandie MBS Signature

Secretary to the Board
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Section 81 of the:Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations
Act, require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of that Authority, which give a
true and fHir view"of the state of affairs of the Authority at the end of'the finéincial year/period and the
operating results of the Authority for that year/period. The Directers are also required to ensure that
the Authority keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the Authority. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Authority’s financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Authority for and as at the end
of the financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes:

(i) -~ Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue
to be effective throughout the reporting period.

(ii) - Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Authority.

(1ii) Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud.

(iv) Safeguarding the assets of the Authority.

(v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies.

(vi) Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Authority’s financial staiements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,
in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner
required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the opinion that
the Authority’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Authority’s transactions
during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the Authority’s financial position as at that date.
The Directors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Authority,
which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Authority’s financial statements as well as the
adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Authority will not remain as a
going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Authority’s financial statements were approved by the Board on K ﬁ?!ﬂﬂlﬂr 2023 and
signed on its behalf by:

Signature:.......'.i....i..“'..?‘... Signature M

Name: Eng. Philemon K. Kandie MBS  Name: Prof.(Eng) Cf}"fl—iéo Mbeche EBS
Director General Chairperson of the Board
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Telephone: +254-(20) 3214000 HEADQUARTERS
-mail: info@oagkenya.go.ke : Anniversary Towers
Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke Monrovia Street

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.O. Box 30084-00100

Enhancing Accountability NAROB!

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHORITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure that the
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the

entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Rural Roads Authority
set out on pages 1 to 47, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenyva Rural Roads Authority for the year ended 30 June, 2023



amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Kenya Rural Roads Authority as at 30 June, 2023,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Kenya Roads Act, 2007.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Lack of Valuation for Fully Depreciated Assets

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.225,073,000 as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements. Review of the fixed
assets schedule provided for audit revealed that fixed assets with a total value of
Kshs.989,846,468 which were fully depreciated had been included in the Authority's
assets register and were still in use. However, the assets had not been revalued despite
their use by the Authority for day to day operations. Further, Management did not disclose
the registration details of the fully depreciated assets with a historical cost value of
Kshs.512,443,162 in the fixed assets register.

In the circumstances, the fair value of the property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.225,073,000 could not confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIs). | am independent of the Kenya Rural Roads Authority Management
in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. | have fulfiled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter
Unresolved Prior Year Audit Issues

In the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised in the Report on
Financial Statements, Reports on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the use of Public
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Resources and Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and
C:overnance. However, the Management has not resolved some of the issues.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Failure to Recover Staff Advances and Imprest

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.854,243,847. The balance comprised of advances to staff amounting to
Kshs.25,806,179, deposits and prepayments amounting to Kshs.85,537,347 and other
receivables (accrued income) totalling Kshs.742,900,321. The advances to staff amount
of Kshs.25,806,179 consisted of two (2) supporting ledgers of staff imprest balance of
Kshs.24,995,318 and staff advances of Kshs.810,861 which have been outstanding since
2021 financial year. Review of records revealed that as at 30 June, 2023 only three (3)
staff had recoveries made on their monthly salaries. Further, the supporting schedule
provided reflects imprest balance of Kshs.11,128,784 and advances balance of
Kshs.875,975 all totalling Kshs.12,004,756 were outstanding for more that ninety (90)
days.

This is contrary to Regulation 93(5) of the Public Finance Management (National
Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that a holder of a temporary imprest shall
account or surrender the imprest within seven (7) working days after returning to duty
station. Further, Section C .6 (1) and (5) of the Human Resource Policies and Procedures
Manual for the Public Service May, 2016 states that the recovery period for salary
advance will be limited to a period of not more than twelve (12) months; and in respect of
an officer who is due to leave the service before twelve (12) months, the advance must
be fully recovered in equal instalments within the remaining period of the officer's service
in the Government.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
2. Non-Compliance with a Third Rule of Basic Pay

Review of the Authority's monthly payrolls provided for audit revealed that some staff had
overcommitted their salaries beyond the two-thirds of basic salary limit. It was observed
that the officers’ net pay for the various months was less than a third of their basic pay.
This is contrary to Section 19(3)1 of the Employment Act, 2007 which states that
“deduction may be made by an employer from the wages of his employee at any one time
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shall not exceed two thirds of such wages or such additional or other amount as may be
prescribed by the Minister either generally or in relation to a specified ‘employer or
employee or class of employers or employees or any trade or industry”.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Project Status on Road Works Expenditure

The Authority has been undertaking a number of low volume seal roads across the urban
centres in the country. However, review of the low volume seal roads records and
information provided revealed the following anomalies;

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Review of the records provided for audit revealed that there were fourteen (14)
contracts for roads under newly awarded contracts at a contract cost of
Kshs.15,602,935,891 with the contract start dates of between November, 2020
and October, 2022. A total of Kshs.2,870,187,602 certified works had been
completed as at December, 2023, out of which Kshs.1,577,565,193 had been paid
and Kshs.1,292 622,409 remained unpaid. Out of the fourteen (14) contracts, six
(6) contracts did not have any work started and had total contract cost of
Kshs.6,200,235,160. Management has not provided any explanation for this
unsatisfactory situation.

Further, eight (8) road contracts had been classified as projects terminated and
retendered as at December, 2023. The contracts had a contract cost sum of
Kshs.18,375,619,633. The works certified as at December, 2023 totalled
Kshs.7,325,587,692 out of which Kshs.6,901,656,097 had been paid leaving a
pending amount payable of Kshs.423,931,595. Management has not provided any
explanation for this unsatisfactory situation.

In addition, nineteen (19) contracts with a total contract sum of
Kshs.29,042,065,250 with contract dates beginning between March, 2021 and
March, 2022 and which were classified as contracts under contract mobilizing. The
certified payments totalled Kshs.4,449 802,340 and payments made as at
December, 2023 amounted to Kshs.2,163,865,716 thus leaving an amount of
Kshs.2,285,936,624 as unpaid.

Similarly, a total of thirty-six (36) contracts were under performance based routine
maintenance period. All of these projects are at 100% completion and at a total
contract sum of Kshs.76,055,037,424. It was observed that certified payments
totalled Kshs.68,511,051,112 with Kshs.58,526,145,769 having been paid out as
at December, 2023. Therefore, a total amount of Kshs.9,984,905,343 remained
unpaid even though the contracts are at 100% completion. Management has not
provided any explanation for this unsatisfactory situation.

A total of one hundred and five (105) contracts were classified as ongoing projects
with a contract sum of Kshs.193,456,648,951. Out of this, a total number of
thirty-two (32) projects with a total contract sum of Kshs.69,226,156,071 or 36%
had slow progress due to delayed payments. Amounts of Kshs.85,837,446,006
and Kshs.36,516,983,360 had been certified for payments for all the ongoing
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projects and those with slow progress respectively. Pending bills were at

Kshs.26,946,615,960 and Kshs.11,705,241,394 for all ongoing contracts and * -

those with slow progress respectively all totalling Kshs.38,651,857,354. Out of the
contracts classified as slow due to delayed payments, there were five (5) contracts
had been completed but had a total amount of Kshs.1,697,955,441 pending for
payment. Management has not provided any explanation for this unsatisfactory
situation.

In the circumstances, the effectiveness in the use of public resources on low volume seal
roads could not be confirmed.

4. Implementation of Low Volume Seal Road Projects by the Authority

An audit inspection exercise carried out in February, 2024 on nineteen (19) low volume
seal roads with a total contract sum of Kshs.31,426,015,932 revealed that for most of the
projects, the contractors had abandoned the site due to delayed payments while the
contractors who were on site were on a slow progress also due to delayed payments.
Management has not provided any explanation for this unsatisfactory situation.

In the circumstances, the value for money for the expenditure on low volume seal roads
of Kshs.31,426,015,932 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness in use of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of
my report, | confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe
that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion
1. Long Outstanding Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.20,173,825,000 which as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements
relates to contractors’ advances. Further, the ageing analysis provided for audit reflects
receivables amounting to Kshs.19,995,248,000 which had been due for more than one
year. Management has not provided any explanation for the receivables held by various
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contractors for long periods of time yet the Authority is also having pending accounts
payable (pending bills) due to v&rious contractors for road works already done.

In the absence of proper internal controls, the contractors’ advances will continue to grow
and may reach unsustainable levels with contractors holding huge substantial advances
and with contracts stalled or slow in progress of implementation.

2. Long Outstanding Payables from Exchange Transactions (Pending Bills)

The statement of financial position reflects payables from exchange transactions balance
of Kshs.62,806,803,000 as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements which
comprised of current and non-current payables amounts of Kshs.55,066,422,000 and
Kshs.7,740,381,000 respectively. Further, the total payables balance has increased from
Kshs.48,908,092,000 in the previous year to Kshs.62 806,803,000 representing an
increase of Kshs.13,898,711,000 or 28.4%. The Authority has not provided an
explanation on the measures put in place to facilitate payments of the outstanding
certificates which have been raised for works done and the accrued interest if any, arising
from delayed payments.

In the circumstances, the Authority faces the risk of avoidable costs of possible litigation
and interest and penalties on delayed payments.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
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in compliance with the authorities which gnvern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way. -

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in‘accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. |

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate. x
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As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism througt.out the audit. | also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

N
FCPA Nancy Ga , CBS

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

15 May, 2024
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

REVENUE

Revenue from Non Exchange Transactions
Road Maintenance Levy Fund

Government Grants

Development partners' Grants

Total Revenue from Non Exchange Transactions
Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Fmance Income

Other income

Rental Revenue

Total Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURE

Road Works costs

Directors' Costs

Employment Costs

Repairs and maintenance

Other Operating Costs

Depreciation and armotization expense

Total Expenditure

Taxation

Operating Surplus for the year

The significant accounting policies on pages and the notes on pages 7 to 51 form an integral part of

these financial statements.

Note

10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17

2022-2023  2021-2022
Jun-23 Jun-22
Shs'000 Shs'000
26,409,596 27,725,667
15,060,064 17,799,054
454,430 520,945
41,924,090 46,045,666
899.756 1,225,481
3,302 51,311
1,125 1,075
904,183 1,277,866
42,828,273 47,323,532
37,991,235 40,197,725
20,549 32,085
2,969,366 2,821,451
135,179 169,130
729,221 760,812
87,465 120,152
41,933,015 44,515,156
762,337 413,801
132,921 2,808,376

..............................

Deputy Director Finance & Accounts Director General

CPA Matilda Wakere Ita

[CPAK M. No: 5469
Date.... 5%.01'}:.

Director
Eng. Philemon Kandie MBS




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables fiom exchange transactions
Receivables from non exchange transactions
Inventories

Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment
Road Infrastructure Assets
Capital Work In Progress

Total Assests

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from Non-Exchange transactions
Employee benefit obligation

Non Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

REPRESENTED BY:
GOK Development Fund
Staff Mortgage Fund
Accumulated(Deficit)/ Surplus

Total Net Assets and Liabilities

The significant accounting policies on pages and the notes on pages 7 to 51 form an integral part of
these financial statements, The financial statements on pages | to 86 were approved for issue by the
and were signed on their behalf by:

board of directors on

Note

18
20

21

22
23
24

25
25
26

25

SCNA
SCNA
SCNA

“‘i\}ﬂ"’?

CPA Matilda Wakere Ita

ICPA No: 5469
Date. SONNMI)

2022-2023 2021-2022
Jun-23 Jun-22
Shs'000 Shs'000
48,301,429 44,527,506
20,173,825 19,921,388

854,244 1,665,795
3,114 6,644
69,332,612 66,121,333
225,073 293,635

139,961,577 124,175,119

197,694,836 179,892,966

337,881,486 304,361,721

407,214,098 370,483,054
55,066,422 40,922,940

190,741 138,197
55,257,163 41,061,138
7,740,381 7,985,152
7,740,381 7,985,152
62,997,544 49,046,290
344,216,554 321,436,765
349,866,916 327,225,066
546,960 541,941
(6,197,321) (6,330,242)
344,216,554 321,436,765

—Detee

.............................
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Kenva Kural Roads Auth (Rl
Annwal Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 30" June 2023

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Transfers from other governments entities
Rental revenue from facilities and equipment
Finance income
Other ncome
Total receipts

Payments

Use of goods and services
Employee costs

Board Expenses

Repairs and maintenance
Contracted services
Taxes

Total payments

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of PPE and Intangible assets 22
Proceeds from sale of PPE

Investment m Road Infrustructure 24

Sale of investments
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from Mortgage Fund
Net cash flows from financing Activities

SCNA

Net increase/(decrease) in cash &

Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the Start of Year

Cash and cash equivalents at the End of the Period 18

Cash flow for previous year has been re-stated to comply with the requirement of direct method of

presentation.

The significant accounting policies on pages and the notes on pages 7 to 51 form an integral

part of these financial statements.

-
B es s n e met s

Deputy Director Finance & Accounts Director General
CPA Matilda Wakere Ita

ICPAK M. No: 5469
Date @5 G\ 22 Date:‘l.ﬁlP. Mfl ";10-.;‘3, s

2022-2023 2021-2022
Jun-23 Jun-22
Shs'000 Shs'000

Re-Stated

65,381,342 67,157,896

1,125 1,075
899.756 1,225,481
3,302 51,311
66,285,525 68,435,763
(747,006) (760,812)
(2,899,358) (2,906,539)
(20,549) (32,085)
(135,179) (169,130)
(24,344.961)  (33,776,447)
(762,337) (413,801)
(28,909,391)  (38,058,814)
37,376,134 30,376,949
(18,902) (57,235)
(33,588,328) (30,246,592)
(33,607,230) (30,303,827)
5,019 4919
5,019 4,919
3,773,922 78,041
44.527.506 44,449 465
48,301,429 44,527,506

Eng. Philemon Kandie MBS

Director
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Kenya Rural Roads Authoris
Annual Report and Financial Statenrents
For the year ended 30" June 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNT

DISCUSSION

1. RMLF Revenue
-Promp Release by KRB. All funds were released by the end of 3™ Quarter
2. Governments Grants Shortfall-
-This 1s due to delayed Exchequer of Release of Counterpart and regular Funding by
National Treasury.
-The Authority Received 49% of its Exchequer releases in June 2023.
3. Finance Income.
-Targets Not achieved due to reduction in average cash balance during the period.
4. Other Income.
-Sale of Tenders are no longer being charged.
5. Expenditure
-Road works Maintenance-Transition of the CRC Committees.
- Implementation of Executive order on 50 Million Procurement and Expenditure
6. Original Budget differs from Final Budget due to GOK Exchequer supplementary
budget approved during the period and reallocation of overheads.
7. Directors cost not fully absorbed due to austerity measures.




Kenyva Rural Roads Authority
Annual Report and Financeial Statements
For the year ended 30" June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

Kenya Rural Roads Authority (KeRRA) is a State Corporation established under the Kenya
Roads Act 2007.The Authority is headed by a Board of Directors led by a chairman with the
Director General being the Chief Executive of the Authority.

The Kenya Roads Act 2007 provides for the mandate of the Authority to manage, develop,
rehabilitate and maintain the rural road network within the Republic of Kenya. However, the
Constitution of Kenya 2010 assigns the responsibility of managing National Trunk Roads to
National Government and County Roads to County Governments under the Fourth Schedule
Part 18(b). In line with this provision, the road network in Kenya was reclassified vide Kenya
Gazette Notice of 22" January 2016 by the State Department of Infrastructure. National
trunk roads in Class C totaling 19,504 Km were vested to the Authority by the Cabinet
Secretary. A further reclassification by the Cabinet Secretary on 8th May 2020 revised the
Authority network to18,662Km of national trunk road network in Class C.

2. Statement of compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying Kenya Rural Roads Authority
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of Kenya Rural Roads Authority .The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with and comply with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) issued by International Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board (IPSASB), the Public Financial Management Act, 2012, Public Audit Act, 2015 and

Kenya Roads Act 2007.
- 3. Adoption of new and revised Standards
i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30

June 2023.
T T e S e
IPSAS 41: Financial | Applicable: 1% January 2023:

Instruments The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the
financial reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will
present relevant and useful information to users of financial
statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of an Entity’s future cash flows.
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The Authority has not been significantly impacted by the standard

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

* Applying a single classification and measurement model for
financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset’s
cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

» Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model
that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to
impairment testing; and

» Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens
the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model
develops a strong link between an Entity’s risk management
strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as
part of the risk management strategy.

The Authority has not been significantly impacted by the standard
IPSAS 42: Social | Applicable: 1% January 2023

Benefits The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the

financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit

schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity’s

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The Authority has not been significantly impacted by the standard

Amendments to Other | Applicable: 1st January 2023:
IPSAS resulting from | a) Amendments to [IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the
IPSAS 41, Financial components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

Instruments omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
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b)

d)

Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on
hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

Amendments to [PSAS 30, to update the guidance for
accounting for financial guaranteed contracts which were
inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on
classifying financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual
basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41
was issued.

The Authority has not been significantly impacted by the

standard

Other improvements
to IPSAS

Applicable I* January 2023

IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the
General Government Sector. Amendments to refer to the latest
System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Now deletes the term composite
social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.
IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023
IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 41 which
is applicable from 1* January 2023.

The Authority has not been significantly impacted by the standard
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ii. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the
year ended 30 June 2023,

Sy e o R R R 3R W

[PSAS 43 Applicable I'' January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective

is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in

a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This

information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess

the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial

performance and cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and

present information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44: Non- Applicable I January 2025

Current Assets Held | The Standard requires,

for Sale and Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be
Discontinued measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
Operations to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be
presented separately in the statement of financial position and the
results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of financial performance.

The Authority does expect a significantly impacted by the standard.

iti. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early — adopt any new or amended standards in year 2023.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
otherwise stated. The Financial Statements are presented in Kenya Shillings which is the
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functional and reporting currency of the Authority and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (Ksh 000).

(b) Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements comprise of statement of financial performance, statement of
financial position, statement of changes in net assets/reserves, the statement of cash flows
and statement of comparison of budget and actual amount and the notes to the financial
statements.

The Authority classifies its expenditure by the nature of expense methodology.

The disclosure on risks are presented in the financial risk management objectives and
policies contained in note 5.

(¢) Budget Information

The original budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the National Assembly in June
2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget
in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities.

The Authority’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial
statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by
presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and
actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in
the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are
also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

(d) Taxation

The Authority is an appointed tax agent for Kenya Revenue Authority with the mandate to
withhold tax and remit to Kenya Revenue Authority. The withheld taxes are recognized as
current liabilities until paid to the relevant Authority.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net
assets and not in the statement of financial performance. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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(e) Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange
on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency
are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange
rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the
reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded
during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

(f) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or receivable in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Kenya Roads Act 2007, revenue comprises all
proceeds from the Kenya Roads Board Fund, Grants, Loans and donations from Central
Government and Development partners, and such moneys, sums or assets that may accrue
to the Authority. The revenue is for specified purposes including maintenance, rehabilitation
and development of the rural road network in Kenya.

The Authority recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Authority.

i) Road Maintenance Levy Fund
Receipts from the Road Maintenance Levy Fund comprise of 32% of collections from the

Road Maintenance Levy Fund administered by the Kenya Roads Board in accordance with
the Kenya Roads Board act 1999.

Proceeds from the Road Maintenance Levy Fund are generally recognized in the Statement
of Financial Performance on accrual basis.

it) Agricultural Cess
The Agricultural Cess comprises of 80% of all monies collected as Cess in respect of tea and

coffee as per Agricultural Act. The fund is administered by Kenya Roads Board. Proceeds
from agricultural Cess are recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on accrual
basis.

iii) Transfers from Government and other entities
The Kenya Roads Act 2007 provides the Authority may receive all monies from any other

source provided for or donated or lent to the Authority. Such monies are recognized as they
accrue in the period in which the transfer becomes binding at fair value, in the ‘Statement of
Financial Performance’, unless the collectability is in doubt. The fair values can be
determined by reference to the market rate.

Where a transfer is subject to conditions that if unfulfilled require a return of the transferred
resources they are recognized as a liability until the condition is fulfilled.

iv) Interest Income
Interest income and expense, including interest income from non-derivative financial assets

are recognized at fair value through the Statement of Financial Performance using the
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effective interest method. Interest income is accrued on a time basis and is calculated on call
and fixed deposits held with approved banking institutions.

v) Rental Income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

vi) Other income
Other income arising from sale of tenders and fees levied by the Authority is accounted for

on receipt

(g) Financial Instruments

(i) Financial assets
Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial assets at fair value

through surplus or deficit, receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. The Authority determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Authority provides money or services
directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Receivables mainly arise
from non-exchange transactions which accrue in the ordinary course of business and there
is no intention of trading the receivable.

Receivables are recognized initially at the fair value. They are subsequently measured at
amortized costs using the effective interest method less provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment of receivables is made when there is objective evidence that the
Authority will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables.

The carrying value less discounts and any impairment provision of impairment is assumed
to approximate their fair values. For financial instruments such as short term receivables, no
disclosure of fair value is required when the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation
of fair value.

The Authority is allocated funds by the Government and Kenya Roads Board in accordance
with the approved budget and allocation criteria set out in the Kenya Roads Board Act, 1999.
The amounts allocated are referred to as ‘disbursements’ and are released to the Authority
based on the disbursement schedule. Any amounts not released at any time are recognized

as receivables.

Receivables are classified as current assets if payment is due within one year or less. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

(ii) Financial Liabilities
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Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Authority
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Payables
Payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary

course of business from suppliers. Payables also include payments in respect social benefits
where formal agreements for specific amounts exist.

Payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. The historical cost carrying amount of payables subject
to the normal credit terms usually approximates fair value. Payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

(h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Authority will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting period end, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Authority does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset
whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Authority in the notes to the financial
statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset’s value can be measured
reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs

(i) Operating leases

Leases of assets where a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made/received under
operating leases are charged/credited to the statement of financial performance on a straight
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line basis over the lease period. Prepaid operating lease rentals are recognized as assets and
are subsequently amortized over the lease period.

(j) Provision for liabilities and charges

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made.

(k) Property, plant and equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Computer software, including the operating system that is an integral part of the related
hardware is capitalized as part of the computer equipment. All other items of property, plant
and equipment are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs
and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of financial performance in the year
in which they are incurred.

Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration
the asset is initially measured at its fair value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, and 360 day calendar year adopted, using
the following annual rates:

Rate - %
Buildings 2.5%
Computers 33.3%
Furniture and Fittings & Fixtures 12.5%
Technical Equipment/Machinery 12.5%
Motor Vehicles 25.0%

Road Infrastructure Assets -

As no parts of items of property, plant and equipment have a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item, the same rate of depreciation is applied to the whole item.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are
determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining
operating surplus.
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(I) Specialised Public Service Assets-Infrastructure Assets
International Valuation Standards Committee defines specialized public asset as an asset,

owned and/or controlled by a governmental or quasi-governmental entity, for the provision
of some public service or good.

The authority deals in construction of roads infrastructure which falls in this category and
constitutes part of property, plant and equipment within the meaning of [PSASs.

Like other assets, all specialized public service assets provide either service potential or
future economic benefit. Service potential is a measure of the capacity of an asset to provide
services or benefits to those that use that asset. Future economic benefit is a measure of the
capacity of an asset to provide monetary benefits to those that hold or own that asset.

(m) Construction contracts
A construction contract is defined as a contract specifically negotiated for the construction
of an asset. Contract costs are recognized as assets in the period in which they are incurred.

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, costs are recognized
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period, measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its payment
18 considered probable.

The Authority uses the ‘percentage-of-completion method’ to determine the appropriate
amount to recognize in a given period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to
the contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future activity
on a contract are excluded from contract costs in determining the stage of completion. They
are presented as inventories, prepayments or other assets, depending on their nature.

Progress billings not yet paid to the contractors and retention are included within ‘Payables’
in the statement of financial position.

Costs incurred on maintenance contracts are charged in the statement of financial
performance in the period in which they are incurred.

(n) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting period end, based on internal and external sources, the Authority reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Authority estimates the recoverable value of the asset.
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Impairment losses are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
assets carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the Statement of
Financial Performance in the year reversals are recognized.

(o) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of
the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted
for, based on purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for
a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current
replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
exchange, or distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in
the ordinary course of operations of the Authority

(p) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on
call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the various commercial
banks at the end of the financial year.

(q) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Authority creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. The net
assets are made of up of designated funds and accumulated reserve which are explained as
follows:
(i) Staff Morigage Fund

The Authority established independently managed staff Mortgage Scheme Funds for
members of staff. The scheme is based on a minimum cash balance at the Kenya Commercial
Bank account commensurate with the mortgage amount. This cash balance, built up for the
scheme as a revolving fund.

(ii) Capital Fund
17




The Authority proposes to establish a Capital Fund in for the purpose of purchase of office
property plant and equipment.

(tii)Accumulated surpluses/Deficit
Accumulated surpluses/ (deficit) represent excess operating revenue over expenditure which
has accumulated over the years. These funds are available for utilization in the Authority’s

operations in the subsequent years.

(iv) Development Fund

Development fund represents the Authority’s investment in infrastructure assets as funded
by the exchequer development vote.

(r) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Authority recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The
effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application
is impractical.

(s) Employee Benefits

The Authority provides retirement benefits for its eligible employees. The Authority
operates defined contributions provident fund administered by an independent
administration company and trustees and which is funded by both the employee and
employer.

The Authority and its employees also contribute to the statutory pension scheme, The
National Social Security Funds (NSSF). Contributions are determined by the local statute.
The Authority also sets aside on monthly basis the gratuity for its employees who are on
contract basis.

The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged to
the statement of financial performance in the year in which they become payable.

The total expense recognized in the income statement of Shs Million (2021-2022: Shs 138.2
Million) represents contributions payable to the plan by the Authority at rates specified in
the rules of the plan. The expense has been included within the staff pension costs under
staff costs.

(t) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation of the Financial Statements as required by International Public Sector
Accounting Standards and any amendment whenever necessary in the current year

(u) Subsequent Events
There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on
the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS
In the process of applying the Authority’s accounting policies, the directors have made

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Although these estimates are based on the directors’ knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

(a) Critical Judgments in Applying the Authority’s Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Authority’s accounting policies, judgments have been made
in determining:

e  Whether the assets are impaired,;
e The classification of financial assets;
e The going concern.
(b) Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The key areas of judgments and sources of uncertainty in estimation are as set out below:

(i)  Contingent Liabilities

As disclosed in these financial statements, the Authority is exposed to various contingent
liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors evaluate the status of these
exposures on a regular basis to assess the probability of the Authority incurring related
liabilities. However, provisions are only made in the financial statements where, based on
the directors’ evaluation, a present obligation has been established.

(ii)  Provision for Doubtful Debts

The Authority reviews its receivables to assess the likelihood of impairment. Provision for
impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Authority
will not be able to collect all amounts due. Where necessary, an estimation of the amounts
irrecoverable is made in that year. Provision for impairment shall be recognized upon
approval by the Board of Directors.

(iii)  Other Provisions

Other provisions are recognized when the Authority has legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
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(iv)  Impairment Losses

At each reporting period end, the Authority reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Authority estimates the recoverable value of the asset. Any impairment losses are recognized
as an expense immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.
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6. Road Maintenance Levy
10% Constituency Links Roads
10% Special allocation
22% Constituency Roads Fund
RMLF Operations
Total Road Maintenance Levy

7. Other Government Grants
Development Projects

Spot Improvement Projects(Public Participation)
Administrative funds
Total Government Grants

Deferred Income
Transfer to Development Fund

8. Development Partners Grants
European Union

L’ Agence Frangaise de Développement(AFD)
German Develpment Bank(KFW)
AFD-Interest

BADEA
Total Development Partners'Grants

9. Finance Income
Interest from deposits

Total Finance income

10. Other Income

Receipts from sale of tenders
Disposal of Assets

Recall of Performance Guarantees
Other Levies

Total other income

11. Rental Revenue
Receipts from operating lease rental

Total Rental revenue

Rental income is rent income received from various Regional Office camps. The propeties

were inherited from our Parent Ministry.
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2022-2023  2021-2022
Shs'000 Shs'000
5,615,091 3,329,411
4,648,427 13,534,796
12,352,473 7,350,743
3,793,605 3,510,716
26,409,506 27,725,667
22,641,850 19,160,087
15,060,064 17,799,054
37,701,914 36,959,142

(22,641,850)

(19,160,087)

15,060,064 17,799,054
: 44,795
3,047 -
451,383 476,150
454,430 520,045
899,756 1,225,481
899,756 1,225,481
194 545
- 571
: 48,226
3,108 1,969
3,302 51,311
1,125 1,075
1,125 1,075




12. Road Works Expenditure
RMLF 10%-Critical Link Roads

RMLF 22%-Constituency Roads Fund

10%-Special Allocation

Donor Funded Projects

Refund Donor EU/KFW

GoK Spot Improvement Funds
Coffee Cess

Equilisation Fund

Total Road Works Expenses

13. Directors’ Costs
a.Executive Directors
Emoluments

b.Non Executive Directors
Emoluments
Traming and field activities

Total Directors Costs

14. Employment Costs
Salaries and Wages

Pension and Gratuity costs
Medical and Insurance
Training and Development
Travelling and accomodation
Other Staff welfare costs

Total employment Costs

15. Repairs and maintenance

Office building

Furniture and equipment

Motor vehicles

Total Repairs and M aintenance

2022-2023  2021-2022
Shs'000 Shs'000
3,647,667 3,994,932
8,202,645 7,950,824
12,240,170 9,232,669
749,423 870,813
13,141,972 18,072,580
9,358 75,907
37,991,235 40,197,725
11,606 11,008
11,606 11,008
4,798 6,184
4,145 14,894
8,943 21,078
20,549 32,085
2,024,046 1,881,261
233,208 218,502
99,368 77,840
149,127 183,945
423,093 428,905
40,524 30,999
2,969,366 2,821,451
11,867 20,112
74,209 99,249
49,104 49,769
135,179 169,130
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16. Other Operating Expenses
Public relations and Corporate affairs
Audit Fees

Advertisement and publicity

Rent and Rates

Electricity and Water

Cleaning and sanitation

Fuel and other vehicle running expenses
Security

Consultancies

Legal Fees

Printing and Stationery

CRC and tender evaluation Expenses
Telephone, Internet and Postage
Bank Charges

Office expenses

Performance Contracting

Total Other Operating expenses

Taxes-The authority paid Corporation Tax on prior year Interest income .

17. Depreciation and Amortization
Property Plant and equipment

Total Depreciation Expense

18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash m hand and Bank
Staftf mortgage Fund
Fixed term deposits

Total Cash and Cash equivalents

2022-2023 2021-2022
Shs'000 Shs'000

18,975 20,460

3,000 3,000

29,224 10,690

19,704 16,817

10,911 10,825

11,760 12,891
179,715 173,468
42,989 111,091
41,616 10,408
15,731 4,755

42,867 41,091
178,236 216,437
34,013 ISR

23,181 15,304

13,393 19,616

63,907 63,386
729,221 760,812

87,465 120,152
87,465 120,152
37,106,058 23,542,103

1,071 1,119
11,194,300 20,984,284
48,301,429 44,527,506

The cash and bank balances as the funds are held with sound financial institutions

approved by Central Bank of Kenya as follows:
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2022-2023 2021-2022

Shs'000 Shs'000
KCB Bank Kenya limited 47,821,137 44,162,536
Equity Bank Kenya Limited 193,360 125,044
Cooperative Bank Kenya Limited 118,069 56,024
NCBA Bank Kenya Limited 168,863 183,805
Cash in Hand - 97
Total cash in hand and bank 48,301,429 44,527,506

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances
with less than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months

19. Taxation
Current Income Charge - -
Tax Charge on Rental Income - -
Tax Charge on Interest Income 762,337 413,801
Deferred Tax - -
Original and Reversal of Temporary Differences - .
Income Tax Expense Reported in the Statement - -
76233741  413,801.31

20. a)Receivables from Exchange

i) Receivables from Exchange transactions(Current)

Contractors advances 20,173,825 19,921,388
Total Receivables from Exchange transactions 20,173,825 19,921,388

ii) Receivables from Exchange transactions(Long Term)
Contractors advances - -

Total Receivables =
Current Portion transferred to current Receivables 5

Total Non CurrentReceivables -
Total Receivables from Exchange transactions 20,173,825 19,921,388
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2022-2023 2021-2022

Shs'000 Shs'000

iii)Ageing Analysis for Receiveables from Exchange Transactions

Current % oftotal Comparative % of tota
Contractors advances
Less Than [ Year 178,577 1% 4,689,935 24%
Betweenl-2 Years 4.760,016 24%  (858,421) -4%
Between 2-3 Years (854,643) -4% 16,089,875 81%
Over 3 years 16,089,875 80% - 0%
Total 20,173,825 100% 19,921,388  100%

iv) Reconciliation for Impairment Allowance on Receivable from Exchange

Transactions

2022-2023 2021-2022
Impairment Allowance / Provision Jun-23 Jun-22
At The Beginning of the Year - -

Additional Provisions during the year - -
Recovered During the year - -
Written off during the Year - -
At the end of the Year - -

20(b) Receivables from Non Exchange transactions

Advances to Staff 25,806 43,271
Deposits and Prepayments 85,537 64,223
Other Receivables(Accrued Income ) 742,900 1,558,302
Total Receivables from Non Exchange transact 854,244 1,665,795
Total receivables 21,028,069 21,587,183

Ageing Analysis Receivables from Non-Exchange transactions

Less Than 1 Year 852,032 99.74% 1,622,525 97.4%
Betweenl-2 Years - 0.00% 19,731 1.2%
Between 2-3 Years - 0.00% 23,539 1.4%
Over 3 years 2,212 0.26% - 0.0%
Total 854,244 100% 1,665,795 100.0%

Receivables constitute short term liquid assets which are recoverable within one year.
Grants receivable represent development grants due from the National Government. The

maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivable mentioned above. The Authority does not hold any collateral as security. The

aged analysis of receivables is as follows:
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21. Inventories
Consumable stores

Total Inventories
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2022-2023
Shs'000

3,114
3,114

2021-2022
Shs'000

6,644
6,644
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2022-2023 2021-2022
Shs'000 Shs'000
23. Road Infrastructure Assets
At 1st July 124,175,119 118,640,409
Transfer from work in progress 15,786,458 5,534,710

139,961,577 124,175,119

24.Capital Work In Progress

At st July 179,892,966 155,181,085
Additions 33,588,328 30,246,592
Transfer to Road Infrastructure Asset (15,786,458) (5,534,710)

197,694,836 179,892,966

Road Maintenance Levy Fund( RMLF) Contribution towards Work-In-Progress for Financial
year was ksh 2,116,573.974.63 being its contribution towards co-financing of infrastructure
projects.

25.Payables
(a) Exchange Transactions

Current:

Due to Contractors 54,227,073 38,629,061
Other Trade payables(General Suppliers) 529,230 2,047,725
Staff Creditors - 347
Other Payables(Accruals & provisions) 310,119 245,807
Total current 55,066,422 40,922,940
(b)Non Current:

Contract Retention 7,740,381 7,985,152
Total Non Current . 7,740,381 7,985,152

62,806,803 48,908,092

Current trade and other payables are expected to be settled in Authority’s normal operating cycle
and within twelve months after the reporting period and are not attached to an unconditional right
to defer payment of the liability.
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26. Employee Benefit obligations

Ksh’000 Ksh’000 Ksh’000
As at Ist July 2022 69,108 69,090 138,197
Additional Provisions 52,543 - 52,543
Provision utilised - - -
As at 30th June 2023 121,651 69,090 190,741

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Authority has an integrated risk management framework/ strategy. The Authority’s approach

to risk management is based on risk governance structures, risk management policies, risk
identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting. The risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to ensure they are in tandem with the micro and macro environment,
regulatory guidelines, industry practice, market conditions as well as the services offered.

The Authority recognizes the critical role the risk management will continue to play in its endeavor
to carry out its business in a dynamic environment. The Board is committed to ensure that
corporate governance and risk management are deeply entrenched in the Authority’s strategy and
culture. An elaborate risk management strategy that will provide direction on matters of policy and
guide the implementation and control has been developed.

The Authority core business involves major engagements with financial transactions and processes
which pose certain risks. Three types of risks are reported as part of the risk profile namely
operational, strategic and business continuity risks.

(i) Operational risks are events, hazards, variances or opportunities which could influence the
achievement of the Board’s compliance and operational objectives.

(ii) Strategic risk is a significant unexpected or unpredictable change or outcome beyond what
was factored into the organization’s strategy and business model which could have an impact
on the entity’s performance.

(iii) Business continuity risks are those events, hazards, variances and opportunities which could
influence the continuity of the entity.

The Members of the Board have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of

the Authority’s risk management framework. The Authority has delegated its risk management to

the Audit and Risk Committee. One of the responsibilities of this committee is to review risk

management strategies to ensure that an effective efficient and transparent system of risk

management is maintained for sustainable management of the Authority.

The Authority’s exposure to risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and
the methods used to measure it have been consistently applied in the years presented, unless
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otherwise stated. The Authority aims therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between the risk
and return and minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

The financial management objectives and policies are as outlined below:
a) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not have sufficient financial resources to meet its
obligations when they fall due or will have to do so at excessive costs. This risk can arise from
mismatches in the timing of cash flows from revenue and capital/ operational outflows, assets and
liabilities according to their maturity profiles and can occur where cash flow streams have been
discontinued, etc. Funding risk arises when the necessary liquidity to fund illiquid asset positions
cannot be met at expected terms and when required.

The objective of the liquidity and funding management is to ensure that all foreseeable operational
and capital commitment expenditure can be met under both normal and stressed conditions and
the mismatch is controlled in line with allowable risk levels.

The Authority’s has adopted an overall balance sheet approach which consolidates all sources and
uses of liquidity, while aiming to maintain a balance between liquidity, cash flows and interest rate
considerations. The Authority’s liquidity and funding management process includes:

e Projecting cash flows and considering the cash required and optimizing the short term
requirements as well as the long term funding, maintaining balance sheet liquidity ratios,

e Maintaining/soliciting for a diverse range of funding sources with adequate back up facilities,

The Authority has an established corporate governance structure and process of managing risks

regarding guarantees and contingent liabilities.

The primary sources of revenue for the Authority are receipts from the Kenya Roads Board, mainly
receipts from Road Maintenance Levy Fund, and Grants from the central Government and
Development Partners.

The table below summarizes the maturity analysis for financial liabilities to their remaining
contractual maturities
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Period Ended 30th June 2023
Less Than Between 1-3  Between 3-

1Month Months 12 Months  Over One Year

Due to contractors 54,227,073
Other Trade Payables - 529,230 -
Staff Creditors - - - -
Contract Retention - - - 7,740,381
Deferred Income - - -
Other Payables - 310,119 - -

- 839,348.95 54,227,073 7,740,381

Year Ended 30th June 2022
Less Than Between 1-3  Between 3-

1Month Months 12 Months  Over One Year
Due to contractors 38,629,061
Other Trade Payables - 2,047,724.84 -
Staff Creditors = 347.41 - .
Contract Retention - - - 7,985,151.98
Deferred Income 2 = z E
Other Payables - 245,807.00 5 =

- 2,293,879.25 38,629,061 7,985,151.98

b) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates, prices and interest rates. The objective of market
risk management policy is to protect and enhance the Statements of Financial Position and
performance by managing and controlling market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
and to optimize the funding of business operations and facilitate capital expansion. The Authority
is exposed to the following market risks:

(i) Currency Risk
The currency risk is minimal as most of cash and cash equivalents held with banks are dominated
in Kenya Shillings.

(ii) Price Risk

Kenya Roads Board collects Kshs. 18 per litre of diesel and petrol imported into the country, 32%
of which is disbursed to the Authority. The Authority is exposed to the extent that the levy on
diesel and petrol is reduced or eliminated due to changes in the international fuel prices, inflation
or other macro indicators.

32



Kenya Rural Roads Authority

Annual R:‘j‘-rr!‘! and Financial Statements

For the year ended 30" June 2023

The Road Maintenance Levy Fund is backed up by an Act of Parliament and changes thereof
require approval by Parliament.

(iii)  Interest Rate Risk

The Authority’s financial condition may be adversely affected as a result of changes in interest

rate levels. The interest rate risk is minimal as the Authority does not have any borrowings.

¢) Credit Risk

The maximum exposure of the Authority to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Period Ended 30th June 2023

Past Due Date  Past Due
Fully but not Date and
Performing Impaired impaired Total
Advances to Staff 26,574 26,574
Contractors advances 20,173,825 20,173,825
Deposits and Prepayments 85,537 85,537
Other Receivables 742,900 742,900
Cash at Bank 48310,770 48,310,770
69,339,606 - - 69,339,606
Period Ended 30th June 2022
Past Due Date  Past Due
Fully but not Date and
Performing Impaired impaired Total
Advances to Staff 43271 43271
Contractors advances 19,921,388 19,921,388
Deposits and Prepayments 64,223 64,223
Other Receivables 1,558,302 1,558,302
Cash at Bank 44,527,506 44,527,506
66,114,690 - - 66,114,690
d) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Authority’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from external factors
other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as legal and regulatory requirements and generally
acceptable standards of corporate behavior.
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The Authority secks to ensure that key operational risks are managed in a timely and effective
manner through a framework of policies, procedures and tools to identify, assess, monitor and
report such risks.

The Authority’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial
losses and damage to the Authority’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address
operational risk is assigned to senior management. The responsibility is supported by the
development of overall standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

(1) Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization
of transactions;

(11) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of financial transactions;

(111) Compliance with regulatory and legal requirements;

(1v) Documentation of controls and procedures;

(v) Requirements for the yearly assessment of operational risks faced and the adequacy of
controls and procedures to address the risks identified;

(vi) Requirement for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action;

(vii) Training and professional development;

(viii) Ethical and business standards; and

(ix) Risk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

Operational risks are managed by the Intemal Audit function established to spearhead and
coordinate risk management activities. The measures taken include proactively identifying,
analyzing and mitigating risks in all facets of the business.

¢) Compliance and Regulatory Risk

Compliance and regulatory risk includes the risk of non-compliance with regulatory requirements.
The Authority has complied with all externally imposed requirements throughout the year.

f) Legal Risk

Legal risks is the risk of unexpected loss, including reputational loss, arising from defective
transactions or contracts, claims being made or some other event resulting in a liability or the loss
for the authority, failure to protect the title to and inability to control the rights to assets of the
Authority (including intellectual property right), changes in law, or jurisdictional risk.

The Authority manages legal risk through the legal function, legal risk policies and procedures
and the effective use of internal controls and external lawyers.
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28. Related Parties Balances and Transactions
The Authority regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Authority, or vice versa.
Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Director General
and senior managers.

(a) Related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year.
2022-2023 2021-2022

Shs'000 Shs'000
(i) Receipt and Transfers
The Government of Kenya 37,701,914 36,959,142
Kenya Roads Board 26,409,596 27,725,667

64,111,510 64,684,808

(ii)Directors Emoluments

Emoluments -Executive directors 1 1,606 11,008
Emoluments - Non Excutive directors 4,798 6,184
Training and filed activities 4,145 14,894

20,549 32,085

(b) Outstanding balances arising from non-exchange transactions
The following were outstanding balances with related parties as at 30™ June 2023

Receivable from related parties - -

Payable to related parties 69,090 69,090

Receivables from related parties can be analysed as follows:

The Government of Kenya - E
Kenya Roads Board - -
Key management personnel - -

Payables to related parties can be analysed as follows:
Key management personnel 69,090 69,090

29. Contingent Assets and liabilities
i) Contingent Liabilities

Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of our Legal cases, it is not practically possible to estimate
the resulting liabilities and the effect they are likely to have on the results of the Authority’s
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operations, financial position or liquidity. Therefore no provision has been made in the financial
statements.

2022-2023 2021-2022

Shs'000 Shs'000
ii) Contingent assets
Contingent Assets Shs'000 Shs'000
Advance Guarantees 21,509,582 20,384,746
Performance Guarantee 27,108,035 23,308,035

48,617,618 43,692,782

30. Capital Commitments

Authorised and contracted for = L

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Operating lease rentals 2022-2023  2021-2022
Jun-22 Jun-21

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows Shs'000 Shs'000

Within one year - -

Later than one year but within five years = =

The Authority has leased office premises under an operating lease. The lease typically runs for 5
years with an option for renewal. Lease payments are increased accordingly to reflect market
rentals. The Authority does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the
lease period. There are no contingent rents recognized in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
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31.  Reconciliation of surplus as per Budget statement and statement of financial

performance
2022-2023
Jun-23
Shs'000

Surplus asper statement of Budget and Actual amounts 132921
Less: Taxation (762,337
Add: Transfer of Roadwork Costs to Infrastructure assets -
Less: Transfer to Development Fund
Add: Transfer from Deferred Income
Surplus(Deficit) as per Statement of financial performamnce (629,416)

32. Fair value
The directors consider that there is no material difference between the fair value and carrying
value of the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities, where fair value details have not been

presented.

33. Events after the reporting period
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period

34. Ultimate and holding entity
The Authority is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Roads and Transport State Department

of Roads. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

35. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.’000).
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Kenya Rural Roads Authority

Annual Rva'r and Financial Statements
For the vear ended 30" June 2023

Diate FY towhich ihe
Partieslirs Date Receivedas per| Balance for Prior | Current Yoar 2022- Dishursed| o recebved during the year amaut relates
Bank Statcment Year{2021720212) o013 202242023
A 22% ROAD MAINTENANCE LEVY FUND
= XY
- [2RyH
KREVDGEN VA MLV 29 Dee22 2, Tl 20 91K 0 3,740, 30005 B | 20220
KRE DOFEIN YAV VI59) YMar23 3,740,200,91K00 3,740, 200,9 18 00 | 20221023
KRB DGFIN VA Vol VI[59) HiMar2d 3, 7000, 300,91 K00 3,740, 300,9 18,00 | 20233033
KREDOEIRN VANV VG 18 ar 23 1 U314 70,0 0 03 KT HIO. 00 | 2022 2023
- |20 N
(Todal 22% RMLF - 12.352.472.754.00 - 12.352.472.954.00
I, 1% RMLF CRITICAL LINKS
RREDGEING ANV L VA1) 16hEar 23 LS, EH0, DO 391500000000 | 2022 3025
FREDGFIN AN LV 59 Tidar2d 1, TN 090, 12700 1,700,091, 327.00 | 20223013
[Todal RNLF-10% - Critieal Links - 5.615091,327.00 - S5.615,001327.00
. RMLF CS AND OTHER. ALLOCATION
KRBDGFINYANLVIL ITNgw/ 22 2006,557,327.00 2,0036,857,327.00 | 202272023
KREDGFIN YA VoLV 2WDew' 2 119,633,000,00 119,638, 000.00 | 20222023
ERB'DGFINYANalM{11) W Dec' Xl 10,7 17, 24000 10,717, 240000 | 20222023
KRBT FIN VA NVaL VIR 28 Dec'22 26591, 3L, 000 0 2,661,309, 00000 | 20322033
KRB'DGFINVANVaLITS) WDeci22 A, S0, DM, M SR U0, 00,00 | 203272003
FIREY DR FING A A Vol IR 1vFebiza 1,386, 766 D0 1,386, 766,000, 00 | 202273023
KRB DGFIN ANV VIGE) IMap?y 1,756,747,57 100 1, 756,747,571L.00 | 30322023
Tatal RMLF C5 AND DTTER ALLOCATION = H.041,032,138.00 H.442,002,135.00
DLRMLF GOK Projecis
e RRA OB VoLY/ 1015) - - b
MOTIHUD & PW A 4.20CVOL LTS -
(MOTIHUD & PW/A 421 0VOL L VEH7) -
Tatl Overheaids Funis - - - -
TOTAL RMLF FLNDS Cash Requesi - 26,409,596.2 19.00 - 16,409,506,119.00
E GOK EXCHEQUER FUNDS
[} M-Sep-22 L ASH 40094000 (20222023
bl MhSep-22 E210 458, 179,00 | 20222023
£ MH-Scp-22 L0635, 112,00 | 302272023
4 M-Sep-12 106, 250, 0000 | 02272023
5 Jk-Sep-22 144, 33135600 | 0222022
L 24-Tan-23 T45 947 83700 | 20222023
T 24-Fam-23 HIXB60,670.00 | 222023
L 4-Jan-23 T80, 208,083.00 | 20222023
L -Feb-13 10, S00,000.00 | 20222023
10| Bi-Feb-13 YRS, M2 R.00 | 3022 3003
1] 10-Feeb-23 BAY, 1 50L(00,00 | 2223003
13 21-hin-23 ! S0 TN, 0L 00 | 2022/ 2023
i3 2-Jun-23 G, 2,100 00 94, 238, 000100 | 202272023
1] -lun-23 172,500,600, 00 1,720,500,000.00 | 20223023
5} 27-Jun-2% 2 i, 500,000.00 2,600,500, 000.00 | 2022/ 023
16} 29-Jun-23 145,000, (01 60 1,249, 00K, 000.00 12022/2023
7 29-Jun-23 1,718,500, 00000 1,719, 5060, 0.0 | 202272028
I& 29-Jan-2% 50, S0, 0. £ 1,690, 500, 000,00 | 202272028
9 27-lun-23% 1, TS, 0,00 €40 1, T 0N, D000 | 20022 2028
0 -Jun-2% 73,907,500.00 |2022/2023
2 27-Jun-23 745,707, LU0 20222028
] 25-Jun-2% 2,540,655, 156,00 1202272033
n 2-Jun-23 FA3664, 167.00 1202272025
.l 25 Jun. 23 676,792, 51200 676,792, 512.00 |202272023
25 T-Jun-2% 1,786, 500, 000,00 1,786,500, 00M0L.G0 |202202%
26 27-lun-23 243 376,201, 2142,00 20222033
7 27-lun-23 1,366,275 85100 | 202272028
28 27-Jun-13 425,959, 14 1.00 | 20222023
a0, 41423 192,000, 0040 00 192 6000, 062,00 | 202272028
A0) I5-Juk22 20,000,001 £H) 20,000,000.00 | 202272023
LV S And Camvetianal 34,436,922,793.00 - 34,636,922, TH3.00 -
Annui ty Funds
Intex RAF Tnvoice 17 29.Jul22 851, T86,735.40 RS1, 786, 735,40 (202272021
Consubrant-LEA Associates-invoive 4 12-Aug-22 7,TH5.085.00 7,785,089.00 | 20222023
Intex RAF Invoice 18 18-More-12 TBA 437,005,540 THA, 43700550 | 20222021
Consubtant-LEA Assochates-Invorve 0] 13--Dec-22 &, TAL 05000 B, 742050.00 | 20222023
Intes RAF Invoice 19 3-Feh-13 T RTE 90015 TWLETI MRS | 023 L
Consubtant-LEA Associates-Invaive 02 3-Feb-23 B,204, 2538 K] B, 210 254,00 (20222023
Consubiant-LEA Associates-Invore 10 3-Feb-13 K05 71200 B9, 7200 | 20222023
|Consultant-LEA Associates-lnvoive (4 1-dar-2% HHAL200 R EIL 25000 | 2020 223
= Itant-LEA Arzoci Invonve (1% 14-Apr-21 B655,527.00 9,655, 527.00 | 20223023
[Consultant-LEA Assoeiates-lavoke 06 B-Juif-23 0626, 365 00 9,626, 36800 | 2022/ 2023
Consultant-LEA Associates-lnvone 17 Fun-2) G742, 909.00 9,742, 10900 | 20222023
Consuliant-LEA Associates-lnvoe 45 H-huin-23 §,391,07L00 9,301 07300 | 20223033
Intex RAF Invoice 20} T-hat23 $50.000,319.00 S50,900, 319,00 | 20223023
Total Annuity Funds - 3,064,991 465 - L0699 465
Tatal GOK Excheipier Funds - 37,701,914, 244 - 37,701,914,248
F. DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS
AFD-GOK Counter Fam -
[Tatal Development Pariners - - L =
[TOTAL FUNDS RECEIVED - 64,111 ,510.467 - 64,011, 510467
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